Date the 9™ day of July, 2024
HHA 2024 427 H 9 [

Xiang Ying (% 5)
(“Purchaser 1”)

XH1
and

Lan Shili (£ 3r)
(“Purchaser 2”)

LH2
and

Shan Chuanlong (¥4 %,)
(“Purchaser 3”)
X753

and

Li Chao ()

(“Purchaser 4”)

LT 4
and

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited
(“Vendor”)

X7

Agreement for Sale and Purchase in respect of shares of
Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited

T Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited
IR 17 SESR 73X




THIS AGREEMENT is made on the 9th day of July, 2024
ARG 2024 47 H 9 HEEET

(1)  Ms. Xiang Ying (%1 51) (PRC ID number 433125198808180027) of ¥ & & ;X #7 ;T &
RxL3, 10 5 2 # 2 5 (“Purchaser 17);
mFLt (TESMEFES 433125198808180027) , Hubk Ay H R i IX
BT 105 2825 C[LH 1)) ;

(2)  Mr. Lan Shili (2 3) (PRC ID number 420106196002130917) of ¥ & & ;X 7 &
B R #3038 36 5 (“Purchaser 2”);
LA (TESSEES 420106196002130917) 5 Huhk e B AT ik &
XHFSlEE 36 5 ( [LH 2] )

(3)  Mr. Shan Chuanlong (#4£ £,) (PRC ID number 422823198401241273) of % [& s~
AFEFEINTHLZBALE 2 52— 110 £ (“Purchaser 3”);
B psed: (hESSIES 422823198401241273) , Hibk AT ET REEYIT
MILXBAL® 2 52— 110 =  [£)53] ) ;

(4)  Mr. Li Chao (% #8) (PRC ID number 110228198807060039) of ¥ Bt X #H % = &
Fz4 D EEM T LRSS — 4 11 § (“Purchaser 47); and
Zegsed: (P ESSMES 110228198807060039) , itk AT HEILET &R A&
HRPUNEEM bR - 115 ( [XH 4] ) 5 A

(Purchaser 1, Purchaser 2, Purchaser 3 and Purchaser 4 are collectedly referred to in this
Agreement as the “Purchasers” and each a “Purchaser”)

KA 1 KT7 24 K7 3 My 4 FEARPM LA GERR Ny “KT77 5 & ARN “EKIr” D

) Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman

[slands with limited liability, whose registered office is situated at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
having its principal place of business situated at 16th Floor, CMA Building, 64-66
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (the “Vendor”).
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited, —Z7FJF 28 SyEM LA IR
AT HPEM AT Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, FF@REsy, HEEE WM HAL T HEFIHIET 64-66
S HeRIE 168 ( TsL2J7] O .

WHEREAS :-
PRI = -

(A) Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited (the “Company” or “Sinofortune
BVI”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,



(B)

whose registered office is situated at Pasea Estate, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin
Islands, further particulars of which are set out in Schedule 1.

Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited ¢ [ A 4 & | B}

[Sinofortune BVI| ) , —ZKERBYE/RFEHERIFEMBLMERAR, HiE
Wt 7 ALHL T Pasea Estate, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin &5,
Hit—BIEE ST HEE 1.

Sinofortune BVI is a holding company with three wholly-owned subsidiaries as
follows:

Sinofortune BVI A—K#FfZ/A T, WE I REARTAT, BEEOT:

i) Sinofortune Securities Limited, a company incorporated in the Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China (“Hong
Kong”) with limited liability, whose registered office is situated at 16/F, CMA
Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (“SSL”), further
particulars of which are set out in Schedule 2 of this Agreement. SSL is licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”), with its SFC Central
Entity Number of AHH123. SSL holds valid licence to carry on Type 1 (Dealing
in Securities), Type 2 (Dealing in Futures) and Type 4 (Advising on Securities)
regulated activities. Copy of the SFC Licence issued to SSL is exhibited in
Annexure 1 to this Agreement.
AR ARA R, —HTrhe NRILMEEBRATEX C [FH] D
TEMBOLE R AT, W FM THB P THE 64-66 5) &
S KE 168 CTSSL] D, Hit— By FAUKIFR 2. SSL $KiE
LRSS BEE RS ( ERS ] ) R, UE I 2 stk gy
5N AHHI23.  SSL FFAEHMVFWIE, AT#ATH 1 K GERLH) « &8
2 K ORARAEH) KB 4 K GRIEFRREE D ZHEWES). M SSL &k
HH PR UIE L 2 R TR 1 A A T A B AR A 1

ii) Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong

with limited liability, whose registered office is situated at 16/F, CMA Building,
64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (“SFCL”), further particulars of
which are set out in Schedule 3 of this Agreement. SFCL is licensed by the SFC,
with its SFC Central Entity Number of AHH120. SFCL holds valid licence to
carry on Type 6 (Advising on corporate finance) regulated activity. Copy of the
SFC Licence issued to SFCL is exhibited in Annexure 2 to this Agreement.

CACERMBERAR, K TFEBIEMEOLNERAT, HEMHH
WAL T HFHETIRIEH 64-66 5T o KE 16 # ( [SFCL] ) , Hift—
BV IR BT AR 3. SFCL 2 3RIF Sk, HiFl 4k
SRS 50 AHH120.  SFCL #FH A VPRI UE AT EAT5E 6 28 Gkl i
ROLEI)D SZIMEIFSN. KE SPCL  HIIF I 2 i IR B AR 3k T A B st B 4
2l

iii) Sinofortune Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated in Hong



Kong with limited liability, whose registered office is situated at 16/F, CMA
Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (“SAML”), further
particulars of which are set out in Schedule 4 of this Agreement. SAML is
licensed by the SFC, with its SFC Central Entity Number of AUB806. SAML
holds valid licence to carry on Type 9 (Asset management) regulated activity.
Copy of the SFC Licence issued to SAML is exhibited in Annexure 3 to this
Agreement.

B HEFERAERAT, —KTHFBTEMBSINERAF, HEMHE
WAL FEBTHES 64-66 5) B KE 16 # ( [SAML] ) , Hift—
BT BTAPDIRINE 4. SAML DIRER2RM, FERaT
ARG SA AUBB06., SAML FFEJFFEZE 9 28 (Hp~&Bl) ZIEE
A B AUE. B SAML #% K IF Ms 2 VF Al RS A 8 T A B s i 3.

(B)  The Vendor holds 611,700 ordinary shares of the Company, representing 100% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company.

SETRFAA AT 611, 700 B EB,  HAN A4 E 2 AAT AR 100%.

(C)  The Vendor’s issued shares are listed on GEM operated by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited with stock code: 8123.

7 BRATR T R BA 2 5 BT e R A 7 B2 M AN B, B
8123,

(D)  According to the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Company as at 5 July
2024, the consolidated net asset value of the Company is no less than HK$8,250,000.
Copy of the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Company as at 5 July 2024 is
exhibited in Annexure 4 to this Agreement.

WIEAAFEE 2024 4 7 H 5 HREHITHLERT AR, KANFMLE
EREEEADT 8,250,000 #It. A 4 BEATHEHZE 2024 £ 7
H 5 HRGH & F T AGREIA,

(E) Vendor has agreed to sell the Sale Shares (as defined below) and each Purchaser has
agreed to purchase such number of Sale Shares (as defined as set out in clause 2.1 below)
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by the Vendor subject to the terms
and conditions set out below.

LHOCFRBEHEHERS CEXW T , H&XLGFCREMELASE T4 U8
CFF LA PNZE R BB ER G Ce XL FICEE 2.1 %) ZUET T A%k
At

IT IS HEREBY AGREED as follows:

FritblFE R

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION & 35 f i F2




1.1

In this Agreement (including recital), unless otherwise expressed or required by the
context, the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings:

FEAI CBIEHRD &, BRIFSERIRE RS AZR, FAHREN A

PLTR & X
“2023 Audited Accounts”
(2023 SELHIHIKHD

“Board”
EHHY
“Business Day”

THEH

“1t Tranche Completion”

S HMTEAK

“2"d Tranche Completion”

A5

“Completion Accounts”

R TIKH

means the audited statement of financial position and
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
incomes of SSL., SFCL and SAML for the year ended 31
December 2023, copies of which are exhibited in
Annexure 5, Annexure 6 and Annexure 7 to this
Agreement, respectively;

8 SSL. SFCL A1 SAML #ZE 2023 4 12 J] 31 H
A B 20 o T B W SR VL 3 DA K 453 2 3 M F A 2%
TR, LRI BT A 5. A 6
A 7

means the board of directors of the Company;
CIEF/ASIN: R

means a day (other than Saturday or a Sunday or any day
on which a typical cyclone warning no. 8 or above or a
“black” rainstorm warning signal is hoisted or remains
hoisted or in effect between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon
and is not lowered or discontinued at or before 12:00
noon) on which licensed banks are generally open for
business in Hong Kong;

FRTE B 9:00 A/ 12:00 MAEBHEFFEE R4
B — R CEEIS. BHIHE 8 L A
AESETH CRE” BRESESHMEN XK
rAh) HAEEERARTIE R E ALK 4 12:00 L
Z AN BRIl R i1k

means the 1% tranche completion of the transactions
under this Agreement as specified in Clause 4.2;

FRA YIRS 4.2 SFAE IS 5 I3 —HE5E B

means the 2" tranche completion of the transactions
under this Agreement as specified in Clause 4.4;

FRA PRI T2 4. 4 FURE HIAZ 2 120 — 58 s

means the unaudited consolidated balance sheet and
profit and loss account of the Company covering the
period from 1 January 2024 to the business day prior to
the 2" Completion Date, certified by a director of the
Company;



“18t Completion Date”
R H

“2" Completion Date”

AN H

“Encumbrances”

gikiE|

‘GGEM”
EA

“GEM Listing Rules”
Al AR L FT R

“Hong Kong”
ik

“Incoming Director”

WAL

CCNAVD’
HWHE

6H 202441 A 1 HES A H 2 aieE
A Al 22 A Al E HINER A | KRG H g S8~
AR R FNIIZ R

means the date on which 1% Tranche Completion takes
place in accordance with Clause 4.2;

KR 4.2 SRS s H ;s

means the date on which 2" Tranche Completion takes
place in accordance with Clause 4.4;

feHcEl 4.4 50 —HES S H i,

means any claim, third-party interest, mortgage, charge,
pledge, lien, share purchase option, pre-purchase right,
priority trade-off, equity right, any property rights,
priority or any type of mortgage interest, and any
agreement or obligation that creates or grants such rights;

RAEEMBIR BB, &30, 92, B, ™
B RO SRR, BUWAL . 0 SERRE .
B AR L S B ERAT o S Y O SR A4 2
DA R AT AT Hip 30 B B3 BRI T I SR ¥ 3L 55

means GEM operated by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited;

RIS 2 5 IR IR~ F) E IE R AR

means the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM;

R CENEAGES: Emigtngy

means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the People’s Republic of China;

farp e N RIEANE B4 47 EUX

means Purchaser 3, Mr. Shan Chuanlong (B & 4 4),
holder of PRC identity card no. 422823198401241273;
R 3, HAERAAE, AP EGIEFS:
422823198401241273;

shall be equivalent to the amount of the total equity of
the Company as shown in the Completion Accounts,
including but not limited to the cash at banks and deposit
paid to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of no
less than HK'$8,250,000 at 5 July 2024;



“Parties”

TR

“Purchase Price”

WS A A

“Purchasers’ Warranties”

“I I B PRAE”

“Responsible Officer(s)”
113 ﬁ yEL]f‘ j'EI\ ”

“Sale Shares”

“Hi e

CGSFC”

UM

»

np

“SFC Licence”
‘[’IE ”,‘ AH‘%I\ A}

“SFO”
UESF KRB A1

AT EK H s A S RAR LS, QFEEAN
FRFF 2024 £ 7 A 5 HHVERIT IS K SAT 4 A s e
ERXGHBRAF AT 8, 250, 000 #LHIFER

means the Purchasers and the Vendor, and each a
“Party”;

LT MLTT, AN [—Jil s

means the sum payable by each Purchaser to Vendor for
the purchase of the Sale Shares as set out in Clause 3.1;

THEE 3.1 FRSIRILE B S5 D SCAH B AR 417 il 32
J7 3 I8

means the representations and warranties given or made
by each Purchaser to the Vendor, as set out in Clause 6
of this Agreement;

TR 6 FKATHLE & K77 1n) 3277 AT fE ) R id
FHPRIE 5

means responsible officer(s) of each of SSL, SFCL and
SAML as stipulated under the SFO;

f8 CUESR AR B1Y e SSL. SFCL A1 SAML
=R RS NAT

means 611,700 shares in the Company, representing
100% of the entire issued shares capital of the Company;

8 611, 700 A~ E Ry, HSAAEEMERKITH
K 100%;

means the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong;

FRN TSN e R AR A

means the licences issued by the SFC to SSL, SFCL and
SAML and their respective Responsible Officers to carry
out their respective regulated activities;

FEUF WS 21 SSL. SFCL A1 SAML EE&Z AW A
PR BIVFRTE, PARE T B SIS TE S

means the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong; and

BEWIEFIE 571 & CUESR A BRARH1)



1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1,

“Vendor’s Warranties”  means the representations and warranties given or made
by the Vendor to each Purchaser, as set out in Clause 5

PRSI R IRIE of this Agreement.
FEASEMNER 5 SRR B ST IR A7 SE 77 TR 1R o
R AMRAE o

Words importing the singular shall, where the context permits, include the plural and
vice versa and words importing gender or neuter include both genders and neuters;

T XRAFRELT, RRBEREIENOFEH, R2IMR; Rtk
HA Y BT T TN A T A

The expression “person” shall include any firm, partnership, association of persons and
body corporate and any such persons acting jointly and the personal representatives or
successors in title of any such person; and

RiE N ONEFEEARE T Stk MABSFENRE, AR
178 LSRN RRUERBEZEN B A AR BT A BLLR AN BLR

Headings are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction of this
Agreement.

PR T AERE L, AR AR B sE R

SALE AND PURCHASE OF SALE SHARES H{ & j¢#} ) 5

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Vendor shall sell the Sale
Shares as legal and beneficial owner and each Purchaser shall purchase such number
the Sale Shares, together with all rights and benefits attached or accrued thereto, at the
Purchase Price and without any Encumbrances in such numbers as set out below:

RBADLOERMEN, RATNEEEASENISEHEANEERDE, X
TTRETIHENMENERZBENEE RS, ERHEMHEREITHAA
MAFZE, BAKHEEERIE:

Purchaser No. of Sale Shares | % of total issued Sale Shares
W 3 HERFHE | HERXRGCBREZSENESE
2.1.1 Purchaser 1 207,978 34
71
2.1.2 Purchaser 2 201,861 33
KI5 2
2.1.3 Purchaser 3 140,691 23
%773
2.14 Purchaser 4 JtJ 61,170 10




3.1

32

EEY!
Total 611,700 100

Bit

PURCHASE PRICE B4k

The Vendor and each Purchaser hereby agree the Purchase Price for the Sales Shares

is Hong Kong Dollars Four Million (HK$4,000,000) (the “Premium”) + NAV. Each

Purchaser agrees to pay the Purchase Price to Vendor for its respective Sale Shares as

follows:

275 R A K7 R LR S A B A 2 A NV B 5T (4, 000, 000 #EJT)
Crapr) >+ B EHE. 3005 AR B RS BB [0 207 KA S i

Purchaser Amount of the Premium (HKS) % of NAV
W3 k2
M} (#T) HEsEE DL

3.1.1 Purchaser 1 HK$1,360,000 34
K71

3.1.2 Purchaser 2 HK$1,320,000 33
K732

3.13 Purchaser 3 HK$920,000 23
773

314 Purchaser 4 HK$400,000 10
L& 4

Total HK$4,000,000 100

it

The Purchase Price shall be payable by each of the Purchasers to the Vendor in the
following manner:

I3 RLBA T 1 J5 21 52 057 3AF AR«

3.2.1 the following amounts of the Purchase Price shall be paid by each Purchaser to
the Vendor at the 1% Tranche Completion:

B SIS B 5E U 1) S0 ST 2 B K A

Purchaser Amount of Purchase Price (HKS)
3k
Bxmetm ()




34

(1)

Purchaser 1

KI7 1

2,805,000

(ii)

Purchaser 2

K72

2,722,500

(iii)

Purchaser 3

K773

1,897,500

(iv)

Purchaser 4

L4

825,000

Total
Rt

8,250,000

and

K

3.2.2 the balance of the Purchase Price in the following amounts shall be paid by
each Purchaser to the Vendor at the 2" Tranche Completion:

W A AR B, B FURKIL, 20 rh & S5 T3 0 e i A s
Purchaser Amount (HKS)
W L
i (#Ex)
(1) Purchaser 1 1,360,000
KI7 1
(ii) Purchaser 2 1,320,000
K32
(1ii) Purchaser 3 920,000
X773
(iv) Purchaser 4 400,000
T4
Total 4,000,000
Bit

Payments of the Purchase Price shall be made by each Purchaser to the Vendor by Hong




3.5

4.1.

4.2.

Kong banker’s cashier orders.

TR SL T AR LA BE AT A S S 7 STAT AR

The Vendor shall cause the Completion Accounts to be prepared and delivered to the
Purchasers at the 2" Completion Date. Should the amount of the NAV fall below
HK$8,250,000, the Purchase Price shall be adjusted downward in accordance with the
Completion Accounts at the 2" Tranche Completion by the Vendor by refunding the
shortfall to the Purchasers by cheque drawn by the Vendor in favour of the Purchasers’
solicitor representative (or such other person nominated by the Purchasers) for them to
disburse the refunded shortfall amount to the Purchasers pro-rata to their respective %
of the total Sale Shares bought by each of them.

S L RS B H , T8 2 MRS HBREAE S Tr . i B AR T
M 8,250,000 7o, WISCHZTT 58 — BI58 U HR4E Se K H 1 T 48, tiszds B
SCRESRTTBIEA R 2B, SCFHR AN RIIAER (BEEHRE A
10, BAESEI 428 E BT SR 5 e O S B 1 43 LR 1R SE DT U A R Z 4

COMPLETION 5S¢ 5k

Completion of the transactions under this Agreement shall take place in two tranches
(i.e., the 1% Tranche Completion and the 2" Tranche Completion).

AP LIT BIAZ 5y Loy IS A CBISE —SISE A ZE — IS8R«

The 1% Tranche Completion shall take place simultaneously upon the signing of this
Agreement at the office of the Vendor (or at such other time or place as the Parties may
agree in writing). At the 1% Tranche Completion, the following business shall be
transacted:

51 WISE RN A PN A S RIS AESE Ty Ap A (BORUTy vl R84 1 R) 2 HoAth
I W) B ) BEAT o FESS —HITe R, SIARFERL N5

4.2.1 the Vendor shall have delivered or cause to be delivered to each Purchaser:

SE D5 AR AL KT SAT g AT AR XA

(a) instrument of transfer duly executed by the Vendor as transferor in favour
of each Purchaser as transferee for such number of Sale Shares in
accordance with that set out in clause 2.1.1 to 2.1.4 above;

ML (FERNEAEN) DR LT (WERALEN) N2, REE
IR 2,101 & 2,014 TSNS ERMEH ERE L
s

(b) share certificate(s) for the Sale Shares with the name of the Vendor on the
share certificate(s);

HEBO IR, BOER LEA ST 4

(¢) the memorandum and articles of association, and all statutory records of
the Company, including register of directors, register of members, register
of secretary and register of charge;

ATGRHEFAM BN, BRARFAEGLR, AEEEE

10



(d)

Mt R RS A TS M

copy of minutes of meeting/ written resolutions of the board of directors
of the Vendor approving the signing of this Agreement, sale of the Sale
Shares to each Purchaser and execute the instruments of transfer in respect
of the Sale Shares in favour of each Purchaser as transferee;

T HEAEREF AWM [ & K07 B IR0y MBS LA T (fE
NAIEN) AN E RGO / JHHH
RV BA

(e) copy of written resolutions of the Board approving:

(iv)

®

(2

(h)

@

S At DA S T D I R AR AR

(i) transfer such number of Sale Shares to each Purchaser in accordance
with clause 2.1.1 to 2.1.4 above;

A EXCER 2. 1.1 2 2. 1.4 K& LT HEARZEH SR
H

(i) the issuance of share certificate to each of the Purchasers in respect
of the respective Sale Shares he or she has purchased;

B S5 8 L S R e T A R IS

(iii) the entry of the names of each Purchaser in the register of members
of the Company for the Sale Shares it has purchased from Vendor;
and
F ST G 10 32 77 W S PR 0 1 I FE AR O W IICAR 44 P8R s
K

the appointment of the Incoming Director as director to the
Company;

RALHEEENA LA EHE;

copy of each employee service agreements for each of the Responsible
Officers;

BEAUNAL) S &7 PN

copy of written resolution of the directors of SSL resolving the
appointment of the Incoming Director as director of SSL;

SSL HH FRPAL T HATEH A SSL EHA T I EIA;

copy of written resolution of the directors of SSL resolving adding the
Incoming Director as an additional authorised signatory as a co-signer
to operate one or more of the SSL bank accounts;

SSL HEFHRVUTABTEEF A SSL S HH 5 R il aA

copy of written resolutions of the directors of SFCL resolving the
appointment of the Incoming Director as director of SFCL; and

11



4.3

4.4

UESR MR B 455 I 2 R B FUCRRAE WL EF NZ A FEH
FhmRWEIA; K

) copy of written resolutions of the directors of SAML resolving the
appointment of the Incoming Director as director of SAML.

IRYINEZR A 5 T e S BOR ZAE L 36 FONIRYINESR 2 5 P s S
A5 I BRI A

4.2.2 each Purchaser shall perform the followings:

B LT BLEAT LA X 55

(a) execute the instrument of transfer in respect of the Sale Shares purchased
by it as the transferee;

AR AL AT K 0 B B S 28 ST LE S

(b) effect payment of the amounts of the Purchase Price to the Vendor in
accordance with clauses 3.2.1 (i) to (iv) above; and

RIE LI 321D EAVF@ET AT, K

(c) deliver to the Vendor’s legal advisor, cashier orders for the amounts of
the Purchase Price in accordance with clauses 3.2.2 (i) to (iv) above to be
held in escrow by the Vendor's legal advisor pending release prior to the
2™ Tranche Completion.

ARAE L3 3. 2. 2(1) 2= (iv) 2% [ SEJ7 I A 0t o] S8 A5 D) S AR Sk T g
5, B BRI R

None of the Parties shall be obliged to complete the transactions under the 1% Tranche
Completion unless the completion for the transfer of all the Sale Shares and payment
of all the amounts of the Purchase Price pursuant to clauses 3.2.1 (i) to (iv) take place
simultaneously.

FRARMRYEZE 3. 2. 1(1) 2 (iv) 258 BUITA B4 B IR O IR LRI ST BT ) SEA R
BN T7¥ITE XS5 FE s — e Il FIAE S .

The 2" Tranche Completion shall take place on the next Business Day upon fulfilment
of the following conditions:

B LSS RUNAE T 2 AR SRS IR R AN AR H Bk T

44.1 the 1% Tranche Completion having taken place in accordance with this
Agreement;

WRYEA P E R — I3 5 s

4.42 the Purchasers' Warranties and the Vendor's Warranties remaining true,
accurate and not misleading as at the Completion Date;

K RUE R SE T RIE T 58 B H ST AR B3 . YR B IR T

4.4.3 the delivery by the Vendor to the Purchasers of:

12



4.5

4.6

SR 5 1] 3K J5 38T AR 3L

(1) the Completion Accounts certified by a director of the Company; and
HA A A~ HFRZIER SR H s &

(i)  signed resignation letters of each of Wang Jiawei and Lai Yuk Mui as
director of the Company, along with confirmation from each individual
that he/she has no disagreement with the Company and waives any
claims he/she may have towards the Company;

IRDEBEEZEFENHEAAIEETNHRE, EREH
BINSARR SIFEBRNDEEBET AR S IR R,

(1ii)  signed resignation letters of Lai Yuk Mui as director of SSL, SFCL
and/or SAML, with confirmation that she has no disagreement with the
relevant entities and waives any claims he/she may have towards the
such entities;

Lai Yuk Mui fEN SSL. SFCL Al1/mf SAML HFHHE[M& 7RIS,
DA Bt 5 FH 5K SR I AR ART 4 150 3 J0 3 0 2 6 S A () 4T 4T 2 I 1)
N

4.4.4 notifications on the changes relating to the Purchasers becoming holders of Sale
Shares in the Company are being duly given by each of SSL, SFCL. and SAML
to the SFC through SFC’s portal with submission records; and
SSL. SFCL K SAML #yrl@iliEMis&mINTTIME:, MER S EXEHA
KL BRAR AT HERGFAE NNZSER, &G 83800%: X

4.4.5 the Incoming Director becomes a co-authorised signatory to operate one of the
existing or newly opened bank accounts of SSL, as the case may be.
ANBUEHE RN Z N, CAERIE SSL HlA7 sl T S i AR AT 1K
(BB RE D -

Each Purchaser and the Vendor shall exercise its/his/her best endeavours including
procuring such third party, including the Responsible Officer and the Incoming
Director, to ensure the conditions under clause 4.4.2 and 4.4.5 above shall be fulfilled
as soon as practicable after the 1% Tranche Completion.

F KT M T MR He K% 70, BFREZE =07 (A0t e RAAFEFETD
TR EOCEE 4.4.2 S0FIZE 4.4.5 SRR RISRARESS — BIe B A V) S w] 4T 1)
TEL T RARAF EH 2

At the 2™ Tranche Completion, the cashier orders delivered by the Purchasers to the
Vendor’s legal advisor pursuant to clause 4.2.2(c) above shall forthwith be released to
the Vendor in payment of the remaining balance of the Purchase Price and
simultaneously the Vendor shall deliver to the Purchasers’ solicitor representative (or
such other person nominated by the Purchasers) a cheque drawn in favour of such
representative for the amount of the shortfall between 8,250,000 and the amount of the
NAV as stated in the Completion Accounts (if any) for them to disburse the refunded

13



5.1

amount to the Purchasers pro-rata to their respective percentage holding in the Sale
Shares pursuant to clause 3.5 above.

FESE T ISE N, SKTTARGE SR 4. 2. 2 (c) 2% 1) S 75 SR ML IF) 52 As) A A S22 B RV 52
[Bl. 4.6 £33 "R, SEARYE LICEH 4. 2. 2(c) R 1) 205 VAL i) 52458 )
SO B AT 3205, CASTA I S R A0, (RIS SI2 07 250 ) SE D7 AR ARAR (i
FIrfa e A A L) 2 — Ik BUZACR N 2 m NSO, &808 8, 250, 000
SERIKH () sl B E R 228, MEMmA IR EXC3E 3.56 4%
K775 BRA S B 0 8 2 He 1 SEU7 AR K

VENDOR’S WARRANTIES 32 75 {£iiF

The Vendor hereby represents and warrants to each Purchaser that the matters set forth
below are and remain true, accurate and not misleading in all material respect as of (a)
the date of this Agreement, (b) the 1% Tranche Completion, and (c) the 2™ Tranche
Completion (as applicable):

SEFRRIG IRV ST A RARE, RO E T () A HIE. (b) 55—
58 BiM (o) B e (A& D) I, fEFTAE RTINS EESE. HRAKRH
RS

5.1.1 The Vendor;
L

(i) When executed and delivered by the Parties, the Agreement constitutes
valid and binding obligation of the Vendor;
HITATIR S R AWILE, AMXBIEHETNEALRL
RIAMINE;

(1) The Vendor has all the power to enter into and execute this Agreement
and other documents anticipated to be completed and the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement, and to perform its obligations under
this Agreement;

S5 A BT SR RS 9 B FEAh TIOR8 OB SCAF, PR AS B
WINBEATHIAZ 53, FRHEAT HALA WSO 1 X 55

(i) The Vendor is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the Sale Shares and
has the absolute right to sell the Sale Shares to the Purchasers. The
Vendor does not require the approval of any third party to transfer the
Sale Shares to the Purchasers; and
LT S R I ME AR RN, JEA R ST B E
By SRR o S 07 R 8 ey B 1k T 3K AU AT 58 =05 Ak
;s K

(iv) The Vendor’s obligation to execute this Agreement or to perform this
Agreement does not constitute a breach of any term in any agreement by
the Vendor, and/or a violation of any judgment, order, and regulation
binding on the Vendor;

14



512

BRI ERBAT AR O X5 FEAK sz T 18 AT AR] B
D(H']EEH%/TJ\, /BB RN SEFTE LR ITPMERA P 4 K
B

The Company, its subsidiaries, the Sale Shares and SFC Licence:

AnE, HIEAG., HERNDRIEERMRE:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

The Company is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
under, and by virtue of, the laws of British Virgin Islands and has the
legal right to own its properties and assets and to carry on its business as
now conducted;

KRB REFREBREERFARESEFEERARE. RHFEEE
ERY HBEEZE NHABHEMSNE~URZEBINTRAR
W5,

The 611,700 Sale Shares constitute the entire issued share capital of the
Company;

611, 700 RAs & A b A 22 R 48 R AT A

The Sale Shares shall be transferred to the Purchasers on the date of the
1%t Tranche Completion without any Encumbrances;

B T30S S RS H AR A BB R L T #e il
TLTT

The Company has three subsidiaries (namely SSL, SFCL and SAML)
and each such subsidiaries is wholly-owned by the Company. All
information provided by Schedules 1, 2, 3 and 4 are accurate. The
Company is not and has not agreed to become the legal and beneficial
owner of any shares or other capital of another company;

ARATH =AM E AR (P SSL. SFCL K SAML), Ti4E(a M@ A
AMMANTSEHEE. WE 1. 2. 3 A 4 2L FTE (S B
ML im. AFBERS REEA RSN S — KA 8 ARG
A AR E RIS A A

As of the date of this Agreement, the Company and its subsidiaries hold
valid licences, registrations, approvals, permits, qualifications, consents,
and other relevant permits for the purpose of conducting its business, and
all such licences, registrations, approvals, permits, qualifications,
consents and other relevant permits are valid and still in existence, there
is no reason for the Company and its subsidiaries to believe that any of
the above will be suspended, cancelled and/or withdrawn;

TAMBH, AAa]HBEARFEAUIME., HEM. fit

. VFRTUE. WA, [FECH A HANA R TR A S kg, i

FTA SRR TEM . fIOC. VAR, BEA . [FE S KA 6

VFRIIEY R B BRAVRAEAE, A &) K ILHHE A & 3 LBt AE
EIREAT— I B B . U R/ B
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)

(Vi)

(vii)

the subsidiaries of the Company have not received any investigation,
and/or any notice of breach of licence from the SFC and/or other
regulatory authorities;
AR W&~ 7 R ARG S &/ SR A I R R
K/ S AEAT 3 HE T

the SFC Licence of the subsidiaries of the Company and the Responsible
Officers are valid and effective; and

2wl M A E] R A ST N R RIE R 2 RSN R B0 K

each of the Responsible Officers remain in good standing, in
employment with the relevant subsidiaries, and there is no change in
their respective terms of employment, save and except that [.ai Yuk Mui
will resign as Responsible Officer of SSL at the 2" Tranche Completion.
Bk Lai Yuk Mui ¥T7"5Seminf#ea: SSL St e MMIRSAL, &
TITE REEMRW WA R REMRRRE RIF, H&HRRX%
HEE A

5.1.3  Accounts and financial matters:

Tk B A 552570

(i)

(if)

The Completion Accounts are made in accordance with applicable laws
and generally accepted accounting principles and standards of Hong
Kong; and

SERIK B THARSEE IR R A I 2 A S 1 S0 B v D0 G 1

The Completion Accounts truly and fairly disclose the financial
conditions of the Company and there is no significant change to the NAV
between the date of the Completion Accounts and the 2" Completion
Date;

SERI B ST A AR 3R A W) B S5 IR0, T B HELAE 52
R H 315 58 AN 8 i H )2 T6) 0% J0 3K 3R 3

5.1.4  Taxation:
i

()

(i)

The Company and its subsidiaries have filed tax returns in accordance
with all applicable laws and regulations (as required);

Ao LHWEAF CAREFAEHERLEN (EFKE) &
SRR s

The Completion Accounts include the tax liability arising from the
subsidiaries of the Company in any circumstances (including delayed or
assessed interim tax liability) arising from the date of the Completion
Accounts; and

16



SEUK H B A~ F R~ 7 H 72K B H TR AT T~
LERIBLSS SUE (LR BB s Al B T AR 55 BT D I

(iii) Except as a result of day-to-day business operations, the subsidiaries of
the Company have no further tax liability or subsequent tax liability in
the future after the Completion Accounts.

BRH S EBS, AR RWE A FEERIKEERA 5
AL S5 i el H S (8L 55t fit

Real Properties:

A=

The Company and its subsidiaries do not hold or have any interest or
obligations in any land or buildings.

AT B R A T AT L R S, B RS ARA AE T AL
A5

Contracts:
&E:

(1) The Company and its subsidiaries do not have any agreements that is
unusual and/or onerous, subject to termination penalty, and/or any
agreement restricting the Company and/or its subsidiaries to conduct
normal business, and/or any agreement that will seriously affecting their
respective business or assets; and
A T R M IR oy B FETCAT SLARATAN T8 Je / SR, AT
BTG, S/ BATATRR S A A 7] K/ BRILHH B 2 7 #E47 1E
HOLST I, K/ BUATAT 2 B R0 5 1 Mk 55 BB
K

(ii) The Company has not granted any powers of attorney or other powers
(express or implied) to or in favour of any person to enter into any
contract or commitment or to do anything on behalf of the Company.
PERIZ FAEM N AR R AR IABA T (IREUER), PR
R B B VAR & F S AR A& B BATAT AT 3] o

Employment:
Bk

(i) The Company and its subsidiaries do not have any material dispute with
their employees and relevant persons;

A NI IR 2 7 5 5 R RN RAEAEAT AT KL

(i1)) The Company and its subsidiaries have no share option scheme or
employee incentive program; and

NEIYS S /NP Z R )i e ol A B Vi | 4
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5.1.8

5.1.9

(iii) There is no outstanding salary and/or fee payable to any third-party sub-

contractors, Responsible Officers, employees, directors and/or any other
party that have not been accounted for in the Completion Accounts, save
and except to the variable items that cannot be ascertained until the end
of month, including commission payments, transaction costs (scrip fees),
CCASS clearing fees, back office service charge, communication
charges and subscription fees, etc., that depend on trading volume of the
month,

RN PAEMTEE =T FI . BT AR JBR. EEK / BE
AN TR T 58 K B i NIRRT % / B3, 1A
JERTCVER € AT R BUH BRAN, B €. KHA (URARE
WRD hREF RGN, FEHAERES TR, MR &L
B ST A S ETE .

Compliance with laws:

BPIEE:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

The Company and its subsidiaries have conducted their respective
business in accordance with applicable laws;

o) R B R 2w O I E PR T R & L 5%

The statutory books of the Company and its subsidiaries are complete,
accurate and up-to-date and have been maintained in accordance with
applicable laws;

AE) RFET AR PR KR SR, AR, IR RE
VAT 1 YR

Each document or filing which is required by applicable law has been
duly delivered or made by the Company and its subsidiaries; and

A w] BT ] ol AT BUAR AL E AR I SR R A 4y SO
BA: K

(iv) The Company, its subsidiaries and all persons acting on their respective

behalf have implemented and maintained policies, procedures and/or
internal controls in relation to the detection, prevention and reporting of
anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing, international
sanctions, bribery and corruption; and such controls meet all minimum
legal and regulatory standards.

wEls R adMiraR&RS BT FAN G E Lt 4E 5 Rk
ERAN DR BT . (R BRI IR R TR AR & A K
FIBCR . FEFPA/ BN B HUbRish fF& BT A sliiE A

B bRE .

Insurance:

R
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5.2

53

The subsidiaries of the Company have obtained and maintained valid
insurance policies in accordance with the requirements of applicable laws and

regulations;
2 R B R 2w A TR P RN L B B SR AR AR R B R
¥

5.1.10 Litigation:
T

(i) The Company and its subsidiaries have not participated in any litigation,
arbitration, administrative, administrative, criminal, or other legal
proceedings (whether as a plaintiff, defendant, or other), and there is no
any such procedures against the Company or any of its subsidiaries that
are threatened to be brought (or reasonably expected to be brought);

ARFA RITARRESEEMFR. . T8 ER. HH
BHARRARR Y (B MFNESG . B M4, K
A AEATEE XA 2 7] BUHAR AT 72 5] B RAR P T e 2 iR (R
FH B S BIRIE);

(i)) The Company and its subsidiaries conduct their business at all times in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, and have not
engaged in any criminal act or any infringement or any violation of any
law, regulation, requirements or conditions; and

RN R A FETT ML 5 I R 24 8 5T T A @ IR AR ANE R, B
A NFAEATILIRAT N BUE AR BT N sl RAEATIE . R,
RESRAERIAT N LK

(ii1) The Company and its subsidiaries do not have any material disputes
with its customers, suppliers and regulators.

DA R F AT EERP L BN AN E YR A AT E K24

Each of the Vendor’s Warranties is made based on the best knowledge and belief of the
Vendor, and the Vendor acknowledges that each Purchaser is relying on the Vendor’s
Warranties to enter into this Agreement, and that each Purchaser shall be entitled to
treat them as conditions of this Agreement.

L7 BRI RUE S 2 T 3207 A B AR AR AE &R, 205 K A& LT IR
HIORUETT LA, HA% K7 A BUR S A 3L 2% A

The Parties further agree that, the maximum amount the Vendor is liable for any claim
under this Agreement (including any claim under this Clause 5) shall not in any event
exceed the amount of Purchase Price paid by a Purchaser and received by the Vendor.

BB AR, LHTRAGLTRUEMRR (BEREAR 5 KRB MM
HRD) A ST e ik i, (AR OL RIS EE K7 OS2 77 Cig
KLy SEAR KB
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6.1

PURCHASER’S WARRANTIES

KT RiE

Each Purchaser hereby severally represents and warrants to the Vendor that the matters
set forth below are and remain true, accurate and not misleading in all material respect
as of (a) the date of this Agreement, (b) the 1%t Tranche Completion, and (c) the 2"
Tranche Completion (as applicable):

B LI IL S B RSE T A AORIE, TR FIAE (o) AWICHIE. ()28
— TR (c) B8 AR (U@ IAERTE B I B, AR A iR

SRR

6.1.1

6.1.3

6.1.6

When executed and delivered by the Parties, the Agreement constitutes valid
and binding obligations of all and each of the Purchasers;

AW —LH T EZBRAAT, MR RETE S MEEAS LT A A 2
HITHI X5 5

Each Purchaser has all the power to enter into and execute this Agreement and
other documents anticipated to be completed and the transaction contemplated
by this Agreement, and to perform its obligations under this Agreement;

BRI A 2SI SEANZE 3B AW SURT PRU 5 73 B At ST DA R A B3 X
WEATHIRE 5, IR IRAT HACA IR (1 3555

Each Purchaser’s obligation to execute this Agreement or to perform this
Agreement does not constitute a breach of any term in any agreement by that
Purchaser, and/or a violation of any judgment, order, and regulation binding on
that Purchaser;

B K7 %5 3B A LB AT AS W OS5 A G K 5 i AR AT
REAT 2%, A/ B RS 1% K07 B LR TR SN s

Each Purchaser is entering into this Agreement as principal and not as agent for
any other party;
#3K 757 A N T ARAE A FoAd 7 AR EE A S 03 23T A Wil

The Purchase Price paid by each Purchaser to the Vendor pursuant to clause 3.1
above is fund belonging to that Purchaser from its own source and is not
obtained by any means from any other Purchaser;

PR TTARIE LIRS 3. 1 S MUSET5 SISt skt % K K B A B2
&, MTAAE DMAEAT 7 AR Fofdy S5 3R A5 1 5

Each Purchaser is independent from and not acting in concert with any other
Purchaser in the purchase of any Sale Share;

e KT AL SRATAT A B e ief s S RSE AR A SE Ty, TR S AR AT 3
K75 — BT 5l 5

No Purchaser is an associate of any other Purchaser (within the definition of
Schedule 1 of the SFO);

20



6.2

6.3

7.1

6.1.8

6.1.10

BETCATART SE T NARAT Se A 7 2 R RN CE SO GUESs S50 B
X 1

Each Purchaser is fully aware of the requirements under the SFO for a party to
become and continue to be a substantial shareholder (within the definition of
Schedule 1 of the SFO) of a corporation licensed under section 116 of SFO and
each Purchaser will not become a substantial shareholder (within the definition
of Schedule 1 of the SFO) of SSL, SFCL and/or SAML upon the 1% Tranche
Completion either by itself or with any of its associates whatsoever;

B LT A QIR ST 1) R i S dr B2 AR k27 K& A
LR 2 116 FIKRMERIRK FZRAR GE LI ISR SO TR 261
i 1 BRlE, H&EXITHARTH 58 sUG 80 sl [ AR AT
RANBN SSL. SFCL J/8% SAML IEZRA e W CUEF KL%
By B 1);

Each Purchaser and his or her associates (within the definition of GEM Listing
Rules) are third parties are independent and not connected with the Vendor
whatsoever within the meaning of GEM Listing Rules; and

H KT BB RN GESCANEAR F i i o8 karss =0, 5325
WA RE Ce BN BT, A

Save and except for this Agreement and the transaction contemplated herein,
cach Purchaser and its associates (within the definition of GEM Listing Rules)
have not had any previous dealing or transaction with the Vendor or any of its
subsidiaries whatsoever.

BRAS PSS B AT IR 4, B RO RN GE XL (BIMEAR
ERTRAY AR S LT AR AT B 8 A m AT AR A B K L .

The aforesaid clause 6.1 shall survive 1% Tranche Completion and 2" Tranche
Completion.

EIREE 6.1 FAEH WIS e UG U R

Each Purchaser acknowledges that the Vendor is relying on the representations and
warranties made by the Purchaser under clause 6.1 to enter into this Agreement, and
that the Vendor shall be entitled to treat them as conditions of this Agreement.
BTN, LT RMKBCE TR 6. 1 254 A7 I S AR UETT T LA B
7 S5 5 A7 B 1255 75 ] S ARAIE AL N A B R 2% A

POST COMPLETION UNDERTAKING 7% St

Each Purchaser undertakes with the Vendor as follows:-

A4 KT R SETT AR DUR R

7.1.1

from the 1% Completion Date to the 2°¢ Completion Date, he or she shall not
by himself or herself or through any third party:

H2E 1 MERBHBERS 2 MEsBRIE, ARG AT E0ES AR
=K
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(1) appoint any additional director to the Company and its subsidiaries,
save and except for the Incoming Director;

RATALBSN HHIMAA L ] LM R 2 AL WAL SRS

(ii) alter the shareholding structures of the Company and its subsidiaries
either by issuing any new shares or by consolidating, sub-dividing or
cancelling any issued share, or granting any option or right to acquire
any share capital, whatsoever; and

B RATAEATH B BAIF . RMETERAEMN DRAT B, 2idR
H A AT T R A SRS A AT I A IR, DABE BOAS 2 ] R B
a MBS s K&

(iii)  appoint or lay off any Responsible Officer, senior management or
member of the staff of the Company and its subsidiaries without the
prior written consent of the Vendor.

REFTESAMEIR, BESRREA L 7 RILHE 2 7 B
TIIN HEE A REUR T .

to procure the Company to change the English and Chinese names of the
Company to another names that does not use the word “Sinofortune” and/or
“4£{7” and to notify the British Virgin Islands Companies Registry as soon as

practicable but in any event not more than three (3) months from the 2"
Completion Date;

A A T R A 2 ] 9 S R LA RREE O AEM [ Sinofortune |
B/ 8 THAL ) AR AN A FR, FREDISE AT RIE L T /R ARE S0 558
Wb LR B A FTEME, METC IR AN AT ER 2 AN e H B T = (3)
MH;

to procure each subsidiary of the Company to change its English and Chinese
names to another names that does not use the word “Sinofortune” and/or “f£
{Z” and to notify the Hong Kong Companies Registry of such change of name
as soon as practicable but in any event not more than three (3) months from
the 2" Completion Date; and
fe fE A 2 m] & W@ 2 =) 8 s 30 o a0 4 BRE i e AN i
[Sinofortune] M/ B A4 ] FHREHARAFR, FHAETISL]1TH
THOL N R PR BB A TEMN AARARES, IRl AT
BOAERHBET=0G)MH: &

to procure the Company and its subsidiaries to provide access to the Vendor’
auditors to their books and accounts within thirty (30) Business Days after the
2" Completion Date for the purpose of auditing their accounts for inclusion
in the Vendor’s financial statements.

PREBA 2 7 KL g 2 Jl kS M 80 28 — A e b s =+ (30D
ANEMH AR LK H, D ZEIKE, BN M 554
BW.
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7.2

8.1

8.2

9.1

The Vendor undertakes with the Purchaser that it shall allow the subsidiaries of the
Company to continue occupying and using their current business premises to carry out
their business for a period of three (3) months from the 2" Completion Date at the
monthly license fee of HK$50,000.

RAEMEXTIRE, RITBATARSINMBATRE S AREARNAEE VL
P, MEERYSE, AEREHBHET, WE=C)MH, SA%MAET
50,000 T,

CONFIDENTIALITY AND PROVISION OF INFORMATION ${E{R5% Biafit

Save and except by operation of law, or order by court of any jurisdiction or the relevant
government authority or in compliance of GEM Listing Rules or the Inside Information
provisions of the SFO or with the prior written consent of the Parties to this Agreement,
no Party in this Agreement may not disclose to any third party (save and except its
professional representative, advisor or other person required by law) any information
and content of this Agreement, or any documents, information, data, or business
confidential information that one Party obtained from the other Party in respect of the
Company or any person(s).

BRIV R S L AR AR ] 92 8 6 X 009 ot A R BURF LR () iy 4 B 188 <7 A
B TR SRS A B A% ) P 5 R 2k SCEREE A B ST 2 5 Tifi L &=
Gb, A BET AR EEATEE =07 CRBMRARER . o1 0] AR 1R HoAth
NEERID) B AW AT XA, B J7 5 TS A R AR A ]
AR N LA SC . B B s AL 4

In order to facilitate the Vendor to comply with the GEM Listing Rules and the
provisions of the SFO, each Purchaser undertakes to the Vendor that upon the request
of the Vendor the Purchaser shall provide the Vendor with all the requested information
relating to the Purchaser on a timely basis.

P EsETT Ay CONAR L AT Y K GiEZR X IHTL 61 BIME, &% FK77 M
ETiARVE, FESLTRERIN, KU I A ST SR ESE T PR BRI S KT A
i)Y BR

NOTICE &4

Any notice or other communication shall be deemed to have been served or delivered
at the time specified below if sent to the address set out in Clause 9.2: (a) if given or
made by personally delivery, upon delivery to the relevant address; (b) if by post, forty-
eight (48) hours after being put in the post in Hong Kong properly addressed to an
address in Hong Kong with pre-paid postage; or (a) if by courier, forty-eight (48) hours
after being sent to a courier properly addressed for urgent delivery; or (d) if by E-mail,
upon actual receipt by the recipient in readable form.

AT En e A TR, WIAFAEEE 9.2 ZRATFIMhAL, NN O F NR I (a4 8k
At (a) RHEERR, MAAD T PR RBEEERAS; & 2: (a) bl
B NIBIETT AR BOXRIE, Rk EARHEERS: (b) 40 DAMBEY 7 2k H ik
&, FEME R B A B Z I V] AT B S Y\ (48) /bEEy BX (a) wbd
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e 7 R R, RO TR R 2Rk S0 T\ (48) s R
(d) BILAEBFFHI M R s ik, 2RO A DL AT BT 2 S b e

9.2  The following shall be used for communication and serving notices for the Parties:
R RAERA U T AR HTBEFEILRBA.

Purchaser 1:
X7l

Address: XTI REXEIE 105 2#25
Email Address: 1573332014@qq.com

Purchaser 2:
X 2.

Address: FEEN TR AXME56EE 36 =
Email Address: 3941330320@qg.com

Purchaser 3:

RMIR 3.

Address: FHE RERYITrLXBLE 2 SZ— 110=
Email Address: 404716884(@qq.com

Purchaser 4:

XK 4.

Address: tFE BB EZENEENATItEHRE—& 11 S
Email Address: LC15611951888@126.com

Vendor:

Address:  Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited
16/F, CMA Building,
64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
Email: shirleylai@sinofortune.hk
Attention: Ms. Shirley Lai

9.3 Any Party may change its address or email address by notice by advising the other Party
in writing by one of the above-mentioned manners as set out in clause 9.1 of this
Agreement.

FEAT— J BB A P 9.1 KM LRy —Hild@m s — 5 EcH
Mtk B F 7 BRI
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10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

MISCELLANEOUS Z: %

Each Party shall bear its own legal and out of pocket expenses incurred in relation to
the preparation, negotiation and execution of this Agreement and all ancillary
documents.

BT N B AT AR RIE R . PRPIANRE B AU LA A M T SOt T 7 AR IR Ve 9
ST

The Vendor shall continue to be responsible for (and shall fully indemnify the
Purchasers against) all operational expenses, debt and liabilities of the Company and
the 3 subsidiaries up to and until the 2™ Completion Date, as well as all future claims
against the Company or each of the 3 subsidiaries with respect to events that had
happened prior to the 2™ Completion Date PROVIDED THAT the Vendor shall not be
held responsible under this clause 10.2 for any operational expenses, debt and liabilities
incurred by the Company and the 3 subsidiaries for any new employment, appointment,
hiring or liabilities incurred as a result of any new or unusual line of business carried
out by the by the Company and the 3 subsidiaries between the 1 Completion Date and
the 2" Completion Date that are directed, caused or carried out by any of the Purchasers
or the Incoming Director.

LRGN 57 OFEBIEEETT) ARXRA A =HKMBA T HEE 2 Mk
HEDMERI A EIZI . G b, BLEH e 2 N e BT R Em
FHAAAF B =F R A7 S ERBTA R R, BL 7 BARESR 10,2
FPTHEMTE RIS U6, URHEEE 2 A5 AR A M E
FIARNF R =AW RAFFHRENERR. AN R=FWRARTEA
S H RS A e H B R R SR 7 BRI # R AR . RBEET I
T E 55 AN F B ML 510 7 AR AR IS A . RAE . T sRA BT, 207 BRI
RS 10.2 FXHZEREM . ZE. RSB,

This Agreement shall be binding upon and enure for the benefit of the successors.

AP RN AA LRSS, FRAES R N2

Time is of essence in this Agreement.

Hsf TR A b IS S

The terms of this Agreement, or any agreement relating to this Agreement, shall not be
deemed to constitute a partnership or agency relationship between the Parties to this
Agreement.

A B 25 K B AR W A SR A AT B 80 AR AR FE AR Bl L& 7 2 TR
HETEESSS

No failure of a Party to exercise, and no delay or forbearance in exercising, any right
or remedy in respect of any provision of this Agreement shall operate as a waiver of
such right or remedy.

AT Ji R BEAT (6« HEIE a8 G478 55 AR W AT AT 2% kAT SR IR AT TR s 4h
FEE S AN O AR kb R o IR
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

11.

11.1

If any provision or part of a provision of this Agreement shall be, or be found to be
invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or enforceability shall not affect the other
provisions or parts of such provisions of this Agreement, all of which shall remain in
full force and effect.

U0 SRAS B LRI AT AT SRR B 20 25 R TG RS rT AT, R G380 B mT AT M A
INE SN A TR FoAt 2% R B 0 2 3K, T IX 8 2% R N 58 41T 2K

This Agreement constitutes the whole agreement between the Parties relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any previous agreements or
arrangements (if any) between them relating to the subject matter hereof.

AU BT A b 30 A A R T 1, FRECAR IR 7 e i 0 A Bl 2 e
B SRR P ().

Any variations and supplements to this Agreement shall be made in writing and shall
be effective after the execution by the Parties to this Agreement.

A BRAEAT A SRS FE N AF T AT S, FRAEA BT %28 5 2B AL

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and each such
counterpart shall constitute any original of this Agreement, and all the counterparts
shall together constitute one and the same instrument.

ARE AT CA— Oy B Oy 3 55 SCAF IR EE 2, 00 Mo S5 S S B AS Wb 2 Y I
A, A RS F AR A 0

The Parties agree that the English version of this Agreement shall prevail over the
Chinese translation, the Chinese portion of this Agreement is for reference only.

MR, AP T SCEA, RO SO UESE

Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, a third party who is not a
Party has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Ordinance (Cap 623 of
the laws of Hong Kong) to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any term of this Agreement, the consent of any third party who is not
a Party is not required to rescind or vary this Agreement at any time.

FRAEA B A AR RO, BWRYE (&2 CGE=FRFD %61) GRilsk
Bz 623 F), ARZEL—Jr HIEE = Ao AT B AT A B WA 23K R
ie OBV AR AEARMTI ] 28 SO P U TEAE AT R4 2
iR =07 F &

JURISDICTION AND ARBITRATION &40 F1{hER

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
Hong Kong. Any dispute, disagreement or claim arising out of or in connection with
this Agreement shall be settled in accordance with the laws of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in accordance with the Arbitration Rules of the Hong Kong
Mediation and Arbitration Centre. The place of arbitration is Hong Kong. The number
of arbitrators is three. The claimant Party shall nominate one arbitrator and the
respondent Party shall nominate one arbitrator. If a Party fails to make a nomination of
an arbitrator within the timelines prescribed under the HKIAC Rules, the President of
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12.

12.1

the HKIAC shall proceed to appoint an arbitrator on its behalf. The two appointed
arbitrators shall within 15 (fifteen) days of the appointment of the second arbitrator,
agree upon a third arbitrator who shall act as chairman of the tribunal. The arbitration
language shall be English.

AU BRI E R, AR . IR IS R R 25 A A 56
RAEAT S 7B, AR 7 UG AT BUX T, {2 I A R IR AN b
HUL R AR R o R O U . PR ABOR=4 . HiE N — 748
MR, BHREAN - INIEE AR WUR—TIARREE (CRIEBE R
b LAY AR MRS PR S48 Pk R, 2 U [ b e b o0 AR RO TR R
—AE L . BRI A R R RIS AP R E)E 16 (HD) R
FIE S =AM i, HULEMNRERE K. 3RS S A3EE.

PROCESS AGENT T

After 1% Tranche Completion, each Purchaser irrevocably appoints SSL to receive, for
it and on its behalf, service of process of proceedings in Hong Kong, including but not
limited to notice(s) of arbitration. Such service shall be deemed completed on delivery
to the process agent (whether or not it is forwarded to and received by the Purchaser to
which the process is being effected).

BMRER, B RRAA TR E SSL AR LRI E R IR IR FIASC
15, WIHEARTHEER . ZIEENALILEYFA RN ER (B
WA CH R BORIRYRA ST KT FF i Hea ) .

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank]
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SCHEDULE 1

Particulars of the Company

A EFE

Name of the Company:
NEBIR

Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited

Date of incorporation: 8 March 2000

Bl B A

Place of incorporation: British Virgin Islands

NGIbES)ip:i

Company Number: 373867

NER/S

Address of registered office: | Pasea Estate, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands
S IIE A3

Directors: Wang Jiawei; and

== Lai Yuk Mui

Authorised share capital

SEERAE

Authorised to issue a maximum of 2,000,000 Shares with a
par value of US$1.00 each of a single class and series

Issued shares:
EXTIRE

611,700 Shares

Shareholder:
B& %R

The Vendor (Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited) - 100%

Natural of Business;

b 5514 5

Investment Holding

SFC Licence:
WM S hE g

Not applicable

Bank Accounts:
RITH

Nil
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SCHEDULE 2
Particulars of SSL

SSL B4R TS

| Name of the Company:

Sinofortune Securities Limited

AT BIR LSRR ATE
Date of incorporation: 6 December 2000
A E)EM B ER

Place of incorporation: Hong Kong

S EMH

Company Number: 740288

AAES

Address of registered office: | 16/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong
ST IR Ab Kong

Directors: Li Ping Sun; and
= Lai Yuk Mui

Issued shares and fully paid-
up share capital:

ERITRENGERA

67,000,000 ordinary shares
HK$67,000,000

Shareholder: Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited — 100%
R
Natural of Business: Carrying on SFO regulated activities of dealing in securities
%M R (Type 1), dealing in future contracts (type 2) and advising on
securities (Type 4)
SFC Licence: Issued on 21 June 2017 to carry out type 1, 2 and 4 regulated
IS R R activities with no condition
Central Entity Number: AHHI123
RRELA RS
Responsible Officers: Cheung Wai Yue (Type 1 and 4);
faxmA Lai Yuk Mui (Type 1);
Lau Pak Lun (Type 2);
Li Ping Sun (Type 1,2 and 4); and
Yiu Kwok Keung (Type 4)
Bank Accounts: OCBC-Wing Hang #802-122745001-USD;
RITIC A OCBC-Wing Hang #802-139298001-HKD;

OCBC-Wing Hang #802-139298003-HKD;
OCBC-Wing Hang #802-139298004-HKD;
OCBC-Wing Hang #802-139298005-USD;
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OCBC-Wing Hang #802-139298006-USD;
OCBC-Wing Hang #802-446125070-CNY;
OCBC-Wing Hang #802-710298057-CNY;
OCBC-Wing Hang #802-446125070-CNY;
OCBC-Wing Hang #802-710298057-CNY;
OCBC-Wing Hang #802-874838200-HKD;
HSBC #502-105398-001; and

CCBA# 000010926216

Segregated Accounts

OCBC-Wing Hang #802-139298002-HKD; and
OCBC-Wing Hang #802-139298007-HKD
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SCHEDULE 3

Particulars of SFCL
SFCL fy¥4R1E5R

Name of the Company:
YNSIEZE N

Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited

LS AFRAT

Date of incorporation: 4 December 2000
AELEAMEHER

Place of incorporation: Hong Kong
YACIPEDiip:

Company Number: 740168
ARDE )

Address of registered
office:

16/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong

M EA I
Directors: Lai Yuk Mui; and

EF Cheung Wai Yue
Issued shares and fully 2,400,000 ordinary shares
paid-up share capital: HK$2,400,000

EXRTTIREMZE R
N

Shareholder:
&

Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited — 100%

Natural of Business:

b 5514 5

Carrying on SFO regulated activity of advising on corporate
finance (Type 6)

SFC Licence:
IEES R R

Issued on 21 June 2017 to carry out type 6 regulated activity on
the following conditions:

1. SFCL shall not hold client assets. The terms “hold” and
“client assets” are as defined under the SFO.

2. For Type 6 regulated activity, with effect from 1 January
2017, SFCL shall not act as sponsor in respect of an application
for the listing on a recognized stock market of any securities.

3.  For Type 6 regulated activity, SFCL shall not advise on
matters/transactions falling within the ambit of the Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases issued by the
SFC

Central Entity Number:

AHHI120
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FRIERS

Responsible Officers: Cheung Wai Yue (Type 6);
ARA Li Ping Sun (Type 6); and
Liu Hang Yu (Type 6)
Bank Accounts: OCBC-Wing Hang #802-139468-001-HKD

RITHA
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SCHEDULE 4

Particulars of SAML
SAML R348

Name of the Company:
YNSIEZE

Sinofortune Asset Management Limited

LR EERRAE]

Date of incorporation: 9 August 2007
AEEMEEA

Place of incorporation: Hong Kong
N E)E

Company Number: 1157086
NIARS

Address of registered 16/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong

office: Kong
I E A

Directors: Lai Yuk Mui; and
S Cheung Wai Yue

Issued shares and fully
paid-up share capital:

EXRTREMFEKRAR

500,000 ordinary shares
HK$500,000

Shareholder;
&R

Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited — 100%

Natural of Business:

W 51 5

Carrying on SFO regulated activity of asset management (Type
9)

SFC Licence: Issued on 21 June 2017 to carry out type 9 regulated activity on

= R R the following conditions:
1. SAML shall not hold client assets. The terms “hold” and
“client assets” are as defined under the SFO.
2. SAML shall only provide services to professional investors.
The term “professional investor” is as defined in the SFO and its
subsidiary legislation.

Central Entity Number: AUBB806

P RLAE RS

Responsible Officers: Cheung Wai Yue (Type 9); and

AN Li Ping Sun (Type 9)

Bank Accounts: OCBC-Wing Hang #802-595291-001-HKD

RITIKA
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed by the Parties on the day and
year first above written.

The Purchasers

Purchaser 1

SIGNED by Xiang Ying (& #): )

e’ N’

in the presence of:




Purchaser 2

SIGNED by Lan Shili (£ 3L):

in the presence of:




Purchaser 3

SIGNED by Shan Chuanlong (¥4 #£): )

)
)

in the presence of:

4" _

i\

Name: /gﬁg




Purchaser 4

SIGNED by Li Chao (£#):

in the presence of:

s
Name: /}ﬁlg .

ST,



The Vendor /
. v For and azb/elm{f of
SIGNED by Lai Yuk Mui, director: Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited

E A

\‘) Authorized Signature(s)

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited

)
)
For and on behalf of )
)
in the presence of: )

T 15y
Narfe: nll,() HON 8AT poarn
wolinitor Btnuar o oow
. 208, Hony Fap s mg
Ofnlg'c;;;;i-s_ 'E:,;._‘_ :";{j "3!'.‘-«-0* i
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— ANNEXTREL
SFC Licence of SSL

e SECURITIES AND FUTURES COMMISSION
= =sRBsskeEgzag
[
SFC
HEE
LICENCE UNDER THE
SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE, CAP. 571
g (B RIERRE) (FHRAPIEE 571 &)
Name of corporation Sinofortune Securities Limited
FeheA M HEEF/HARAE
Central entity no.
thiLE e AHH123
Date of Issue 21 June 2017
FRHM 201746 H§ 21 H

The above-mentioned person is licensed to carry on the following regulated activities:

LICABIEIE ST DT 2RSS

Type 1 : Dealing in Securities BIEH BHEXS
Type 2 : Dealing in Futures Contracts F2H  HEEORS
Type 4 : Advising on Securities AT SEREUER

This licence is granted on the following conditions:

BEREERIAZ DU T RAEARIR:

NIL ()

Licence first granted on : 29 August 2003 SERIALNO: &% : (F) 236134
BRENEEHK : 200348 5 296 1M ;

L

A e R e b bt

E/




SFC Licence of SFCL

REEEnE SECURITIES AND FUTURES COMMISSION
HlEm Esrssxspezzas
2 el
SFC
HEE
LICENCE UNDER THE
SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE, CAP. 571
R (B KARHE) (FWEHIE 571 )
Name of corporation Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited
FeheA ERESRRMEARAE
( Central entit
y no.
ch g AHH120
Date of Issue 21 June 2017
was HEA 201756 H21H

The above-mentioned person is licensed to carry on the following regulated activities:

EHCKEI TS SR T LA AR EVEED:

Type 6 : Advising on Corporate Finance 63 phiREIREER

This licence is granted on the following conditions:

BERRIRZE 2 AT R RRIR:

1. Thelicensee shall not hold client assets. The R AFTEBIFEEELEE - "HE" Rk X555 WIES
terms "hold" and "client assets” are as defined  E7¢ (%R B EG]) MRS NRAE -

under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Q 2. Type 6: For Type 6 regulated activity, with 6 E o MBREIFEETS  H20074E 1 A | BEIG
effect from 1 January 2007, the licensee shall ks A RSB RIS O S T AT 4TI F THAYEH 35 L)
not act as sponsor in respect of an application 8 A 537 -
for the listing on a recognized stock market of
any securities.

3. Type 6: For Type 6 regulated activity, the %O BB CHSHEEEHN S « FRAT SIS HE
licensee shall not advise on By (AT - SO RALAEEETR) BERNEEARSE

matters/transactions falling within the ambit of = fif .
the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and ERRHAER
Share Repurchases issued by the

Commission.

Licence first granted on : 29 August 2003 SERIALNO: &% : (F) 236133
EWHRARE . 20034E8H 299 11

=
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ANNEXIRE. 3

SFC Licence of SAML

Joss R ] SECURITIES AND FUTURES COMMISSION
= =srnsspezzse
R
SFC
FEE
LICENCE UNDER THE
SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE, CAP. 571
HEE CGRZF RSB NRG) (BHAHISE 571 &)

Name of corporation Sinofortune Asset Management Limited
FeheA N EREEEEARAH

Central entity no.

thufggae AUB806

Date of Issue 21 June 2017

= 201746 5 21 H

The above-mentioned person is licensed to carry on the following regulated activities:

EaABE ST T 2R EED:

Type 9 : Asset Management

SO ROCAEEE

This licence is granted on the following conditions:

BERERRIAZ LT R AR R:

1. The licensee shall not hold client assets. The
terms "hold" and "client assets" are as defined
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

2. The licensee shall only provide services to
professional investors. The term "professional
investor” is as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and its subsidiary
legislation.

Licence first granted on : 20 May 2010
HREfEAM : 20104£5 5208

FIEAGHAEEREE - "6 R "EFRE" NEH
EfE (ERRIRHRE) FRESRECARE -

FRRRA R AT ERAG A E IR - "R BT
(ERAERGI) RENMBEGINIREINRE -

" SERIALNO: 8% : (F) 236135
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ANNEXURE 4

Consolidated Management Accounts of the Company

Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Statement of Financial Position

As at 5 July 2024
HK$
Non-current Assets 5,811.00
Current Assets
Cash at Bank (house) 8,101,654.17
Cash at Bank (Client) 6,286,622.96
Statutory Deposit 405,741.00
Prepayment and other receivable 70,719.48
Cash client receivable 111,840.39
14,976,578.00
Current Liabilities
Client payable (6,531,062.76)
CCASS payable (135,105.00)
Accrued expenses (50,710.02)
(6,716,877.78)
Net Current Assets 8,265,511.22
Equity
Share Capital 4,771,260.00
Reserves 3,494,251.22

8,265,511.22




ANNEXURE 5

2023 Audited Accounts of SSL

SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREHFARATE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST DECEMBER 2023



SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EEFARAT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023

CONTENTS
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERBFARAT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of Sinofortune Securities
Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 3 1st December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Sinofortune Securities Limited (the "Company") is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Company’s registered office and
principal place of business are located at 16/F, CMA Building, No. 64-66 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company is a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is licensed to
carry on the regulated activities in connection with dealing in securities and futures contracts and
advising on securities. There are no significant changes compared with the activities conducted in
previous year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is exempted to be disclosed in the directors’ report as the Company satisfied the
requirement of section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The financial performance of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2023 and the
Company’s financial position at that date are set out in the Company’s financial statements on pages 7
to 54.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the financial year (2022:
Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to the financial statements. There
was no movement of the share capital during the year.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:

LI Ping Sun
LAI Yuk Mui

In accordance with Article 7 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all the directors shall retire in
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.



SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERGHFARAT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the year.
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by mean of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company’s holding company
or any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company or the entity
connected with a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at
the end of the financial year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance)
for the benefit of the directors of the Company Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint CCTH CPA
Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of(fﬁjoard
(2 &7

Li Plng Sun |
Director

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2024



CCTH CPA LIMITED
FEXEEHMERLQE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EEEFARAT
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sinofortune Securities Limited (the "Company") set out
on pages 7 to 54, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st December 2023, and
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31st December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™) and with
reference to Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated
Entities of Intermediaries” issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the directors’ report on pages 1 to 2, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

CCTH CPA LIMITED

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2. Kowloon Commerce Centre, -3- T. (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road. Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthecpa com



CCTH CPA LIMITED
HIERES NS RAS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
FEEEFRRAT
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the
records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the
requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

CCTH CPA LIMITED

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F,, Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, 4~ T: (852)2545 4654 F:(852)2543% 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthecpa.com



CCTH CPA LIMITED
REXEGHEAERA S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFARAT

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of
Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and
Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

CCTH CPA LIMITED

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, -5- T: (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthepa.com



CCTH CPA LIMITED
PEXEEHAEIRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EEFFHRAH
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules
and Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

() )

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Chi Hang
Practising certificate number P01957

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2024

CCTH CPA LIMITED

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F,, Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, -6- T: (852)2545 4654 F:(852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthcpa.com




SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFERALT

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes
Revenue 6
Cost of income
Other income and losses, net 7
Administrative expenses
Loss before tax 8
Income tax 10

Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year

2023 2022
HK$ HKS
381,421 449,322
(71,390) (70,425)
310,031 378,897
41,508 170,599
(4,004,908) (1,369,080)
(3,653,369) (819,584)
(3,653,369) (819,584)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of, and should be

read in conjunction with, these financial statements.



SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERMEHFARAT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes 2023 2022
HKS$ HK$§
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 4,260 8,916
Intangible assets 13 2 2
Investment in a subsidiary 14 - 2
Statutory deposits 15 405,000 405,000
409,262 413,920
Current Assets
Trade receivables 16 117,013 315,343
Deposits and prepayments 17 78,491 59,680
Amount due from the ultimate holding company 18 156,222 -
Bank balances and cash — trust accounts 19 5,276,289 5,939,597
Bank balances and cash — general accounts 19 11,508,877 15,538,565
17,136,892 21,853,185
Current Liabilities
Trade payables 20 5,451,014 6,075,907
Other payables and accruals 21 302,260 321,022
Amount due to the ultimate holding company 22 - 423,927
5,753,274 6,820,856
Net current assets 11,383,618 15,032,329
11,792,880 15,446,249




SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERFFARAE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$

Equity
Share capital 23 77,000,000 77,000,000
Reserves (65,207,120) (61,553,751)
11,792,880 15,446,249

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of, and should be
read in conjunction with, these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22nd
March 2024 and are signed by

\”??7 s

Li Ping Sun Lai ¥ uk Mbi
Director Director



SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EEEHFARNT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Accumulated

Share capital losses Total
HK§ HK$ HK$
At st January 2022 77,000,000 (60,734,167) 16,265,833
Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year - (819,584) (819,584)
At 31st December 2022 and 1st January 2023 77,000,000 (61,553,751) 15,446,249
Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year - (3,653,369) (3,653,369)
At 31st December 2023 77,000,000 (65,207,120) 11,792,880
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERBHFARAE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest income

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Decrease in bank balances and cash - segregated accounts
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
(Decrease)/increase in deposits and prepayments

Decrease in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals

Cash used in operating activities
Interest received
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Net movements of amount due from a fellow subsidiary
Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Disposal of subsidiary

Net movements of amount due from/to the ultimate holding company
Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents of
the end of the year
Bank balances and cash — general accounts

1l-

2023 2022
HKS HKS
(3,653,369) (819,584)
4,656 11,940
(18,643) (15,204)
(3,667,356) (822,848)
663,308 175,947
198,330 (60,187)
(18,811) 8,224
(624,893) (332,908)
(18,762) 147,672
(3,468,184) (884,100)
18,643 15,204
(3,449,541) (868,896)
s 2,059,491
= 2,059,491
2 -
(580,149) (5,464,012)
(580,147) (5,464,012)
(4,029,688) (4,273,417)
15,538,565 19,811,982
11,508,877 15,538,565
11,508,877 15,538,565




SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREHFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sinofortune Securities Limited (the "Company") is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Company is a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is licensed to carry on the regulated
activities in connection with dealing in securities and futures contracts and advising on securities.
The Company's registered office and principal place of business are located at 16th Floor, CMA
Building, No. 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong,.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company is
Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands, and Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in Cayman Islands, respectively. The shares of Sinofortune Financial Holdings
Limited are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange™).

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, these financial statements have also been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

-12-



SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EEEFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STARDARDS
("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current vear

In the current year, the Company has applied the amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after Ist January 2023 for the
preparation of the financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts
the October 2020 and
February 2022 Amendments
to HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar Two model Rules
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2

The application of new and amendents to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Company’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.

13-



SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERHEFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STARDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not vet effective

The Company has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements2
and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability”

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the amendments to HKFRSs,
which are not yet effective, will have no material impact on the financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFARLT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), the collective term which includes all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA™), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinances. Material accounting policy information adopted by the Company are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Company. Information on adoption of new
accounting standards to the extent that they are relevant to the company for the current and prior
accounting periods are shown in note 3.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EMFFARAE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below, and on the basis that the Company is going concern.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the input to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

- Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
The principal accounting policies are stated below:

(a) Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that
is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives .and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the Company performs;

- the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Company performs; or

- the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at point in time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

In determining the transaction price, the Company adjusts the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Company with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the associated goods or

services is less than one year, the Company applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERBEFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(@

(b)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Further details of the Company’s revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Commission income from securities and futures brokerage is recognised on a trade date
basis.

(ii) Management fee income is recognised when the relevant services have been rendered.
(iii) Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(iv) Sundry income is recognised whenever it is received or receivable.

(v) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is
a reasonable assurance that the grant or subsidies will be received and the Company will
comply with all attached conditions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit or loss before income tax because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilitics are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised it the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERBFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(©)

(d)

Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise control. The Company
controls an investee if all three of the following elements are present: (1) power over the
investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (3) the ability to use
its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivables.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis, as follows:

- Furniture and equipment 3 years
- Computer equipment 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit and loss.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recongised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabililties at FVTPL are
recongnised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Company’s ordinary course of business are

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost:

- the financial assets is held within a business model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI™):

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
- itis a derivative that it is not designiated and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required to be
measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

0]

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve, and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included
in the other income or losses, net in profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other income or losses, net”.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERBFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assels

The Company performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade receivables, deposits, amount due from the ultimate holding
company, bank balances and cash — trust accounts, and bank balances and cash — general
accounts) which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Company’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Company measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Company recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition,

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERBHFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assels (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Company
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the
company considers changes in the risk of a default occurring on the loan to which a loan
commitment relates; for financial guarantee contracts, the Company considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assels (continued)

()

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due,

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Company considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above, the Company considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurs.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to
the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EEEFARAE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(¢) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses.

(iv) Write-off policy

)

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e:
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive; discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Company is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of the expected payment to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Company
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

27-



SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREGFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the present value of the difference between
the contractual cash flows that are due to the Company if the holder of the loan
commitments draws down the loan, and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or on loan commitments for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Company will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks that are specific to
the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit information such as forward

looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Company takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the grouping:

- Past-due status;
- Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
- External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset

unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to
recognised the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an

entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

®

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables and accruals, amount due to the
ultimate holding company and interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
where appropriate, the shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The Company operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme” under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPT Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Company in an independently administered fund. The Company’s employer
contributions vest fully within the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme.
During the reporting period, the total amount of forfeited contributions, which arose upon
employees leaving the MPF Scheme and available to reduce the contribution payable in
future vears was nil (2022: Nil).
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

®

(&

Employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following
dates: (a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employee expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency).
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is also the
Company's functional currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in profit or loss.
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5.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the
directors of the Company is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimation uncertainties that the directors have made
in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(a) Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issued based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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5. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

The management of the Company assessed the financial assets based on the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement records, including past due dates, default
rates, forward-looking information that is reasonable, supportable and available without undue
cost or effort.

Provision for expected credit losses of financial assets at amortised cost
The Company uses a provision of matrix approach to calculate ECLs for financial assets. The
determination of default rates takes into account historical data and forward-looking

information which involves a significant degree of management judgment.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast general
economic conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or the forecast economic
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6. REVENUE

The Company is principally engaged in dealing in securities and futures contracts and advising on

securities. An analysis of revenue of the Company is as follows:-

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major service lines is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers within the

scope of HKFRS 15:

Disaggregation of revenue by major services lines
Commission and brokerage from securities and
futures brokerage
Management fee income

Revenue from other sources
Interest income from
- Cash clients
- Margin clients

Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition within

the scope of HKFRS 15
- Over time
- At point in time
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2023 2022
HK$ HK$
342,750 401,004
26,787 33,127
369,537 434,131
9,441 8,513
2,443 6,678
11,884 15,191
381,421 449,322
26,787 33,127
342,750 401,004
369,537 434,131
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7. OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET 2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
Other income
Central Cleaning and Settlement System ("CCASS")
fee income 11,660 12,604
Handling fee income 10,865 10,916
Interest income 6,759 13
Scrip fee income 15,158 7,028
Government grants and subsidies - 148,000
44,442 178,561
Other gains and losses
Exchange losses (2,934) (7,962)
Other income and losses, net 41,508 170,599
8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 2023 2022
HK$ HKS
Loss before tax is arrived at after charging :-
Directors' emoluments
Directors' fee 600,000 -
Other staff costs (note) 2,140,424 422,068
2,740,424 422,068
Auditor's remuneration 63,000 60,000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,656 11,940

Note:

The other staff costs include contributions to mandatory provident funds amounted to

HK$57,000 (2022: HK$16,568).
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9.

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS

Details of the director's benefits disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Companies (Disclosure of information about benefits of directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) are as follows:

(a) Save as disclosed in note 8, no payments for emoluments, retirement benefits, termination of
office or services as a director were made to or receivable by the directors or any other parties
in respect of the year.

(b) Save as disclosed in note 18, no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the directors
of the Company or entities connected with the directors were made or entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

(c) Save as disclosed in note 24, the Company has not entered into any other transactions,
arrangements of contracts during the year, in which the directors of the Company have
material interests.
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10. INCOME TAX

11.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Company has incurred a loss for tax
purpose for both years.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Loss before taxation (3,653,369) (819,584)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated at
the rates applicable to profits in Hong Kong
at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (602,806) (135,231)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes (1,115) (24,422)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 768 1,970
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised (30%5) (382)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 603,458 158,065

Income tax expense = =

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has unrecognised tax loss appropriately
HK$58,994,179 (2022: HK$55,336,852) to carry forward against future taxable income. The
deferred tax asset has not been recognised due to unpredictability of future profit streams against
which the tax loss can be utilised. These unrecognised tax losses have no expiry date.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2022: Nil).
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture
and Computer
equipment equipment Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
Cost:
At 1st January 2022, 31st December 2022,
st January 2023 and 3 1st December 2023 13,831 200,958 214,789
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1st January 2022 13,831 180,102 193,933
Charge for the year - 11,940 11,940
At 31st December 2022 and
Ist January 2023 13,831 192,042 205,873
Charge for the year - 4,656 4,656
At 31st December 2023 13,831 196,698 210,529
Carrying amount:
At 31st December 2023 - 4,260 4,260
At 31st December 2022 - 8,916 8,916
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13.

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Trading
rights
HK$
Cost:
At 1st January 2022, 3 Ist December 2022,
Ist January 2023 and 31st December 2023 3.224.000
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1st January 2022, 31st December 2022,
st January 2023 and 3 1st December 2023 3,223,998
Carrying amount
At 31st December 2023 2
At 31st December 2022 2
INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS
Unlisted shares, at cost - 2
The particulars of subsidiary are as follows:-
Place of Particulars of Percentage of paid up
Name of incorporation issued share capital held by Principal
company  and business capital the Company directly activity
2023 2022
Sinofortune Hong Kong HK$2 0% 100% Inactive
Nominees
Limited

No consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the exemption granted
by HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” as the Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of its ultimate holding company which prepares consolidated financial statements available for the

public use that complies with HKFRSs.
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15. STATUTORY DEPOSITS

16.

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited ("HKSCC")
- Contribution fund deposit
- Admission fee deposit

The SEHK

- Compensation fund deposit
- Fidelity fund deposit

- Stamp duty deposit

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from securities brokerage business:
Margin clients

Cash clients

Brokers and dealers

HKSCC, net
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2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000
5,000 5,000
405,000 405,000
2023 2022
HK$ HK$
39,987 164,928
59,955 150,409
6 6
17,065 s
117,013 315,343
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivable from margin clients are repayable on demand, bearing interest at prevailing
market rates and are secured by clients' pledged securities which are listed on the SEHK with a
total market value of approximately HK$8,279,000 as at 31st December 2023 (2022:
HK$10,214,000). The Company considers that the credit risk arising from the trade receivable
from margin clients is significantly mitigated by the client's pledged securites.

The settlement terms of the receivables arising from cash clients and HKSCC are one or two
trade days after the trade execution date. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the trade
receivables from cash clients amounted to HK$59,955 (2022: HK$150,409) were settled by the
clients.

Aged analysis of receivables arising from securities brokerage business is not presented as
management of the Company considers that the aged analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of this business.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amounts of
trade receivables. Other than the trade receivable from margin clients, the Company does not
hold any collateral as security in respect of its trade receivables. There is no recent history of
default on the trade receivables.

Impairment under HKFRS 9

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses ("ECL"). The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e. by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic condition. The probability default and the
loss given default were estimated to be minimal in 2023.
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17.

18.

19.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
Deposits and prepayments 78,491 59,680

The amount of the Company's deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense within one year or are receivable on demand.

AMOUNT DUE FROM THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The amount due from the ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amounts is denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair values.

Disclosure pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Maximum amount

Name of outstanding Balances Balances
Fellow subsidiary during the year at31.12.2023 at31.12.2022
HK$ HKS$ HK$

Sinofortune Financial Holdings
Limited 156,222 156,222 -

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following item in
the statement of financial position:-

2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
Cash at bank 16,785,166 21,478,162
Analysed for reporting as:
Bank balances and cash
- trust accounts 5,276,289 5,939,597
- general accounts 11,508,877 15,538,565
16,785,166 21,478,162
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23.

24.

SHARE CAPITAL
2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Issued and fully paid:-
At the beginning and the end of the year
77,000,000 ordinary shares with no nominal value 77,000,000 77,000,000

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following significant related party's transactions and
balances:-

Notes 2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Management fee income from a fellow subsidiary (i) 26,787 33,127

Notes:
(i) Management fee income from a fellow subsidiary was charged at a negotiated value.
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25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company is regulated by the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO") and is required to
comply with certain minimum capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In addition,
the Company 's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for the sole member and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to the sole member, return capital to the sole member or issue new shares.

The Company monitors its capital structure on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt
(including current and non-current liabilities but excluding current or deferred income tax
liabilities as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (including share capital and accumulated
losses as shown in the statement of financial position).

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at 31st December 2023 and 2022 was as follows:-

2023 2022

HKS$ HK$
Total debts 5,753,274 6,820,856
Less: Bank balances and cash, including trust accounts (16,785,166) (21.478,162)
Net debt (11,031,892) (14,657,306)
Adjusted capital 11,792,880 15,446,249
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio N/A N/A

The Company's operation is primarily sourced from the business income, and other finances
sourced from the following which except otherwise indicated are interest free and have no fixed
repayment terms.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
Financial assets
At amortised costs
Statutory deposits 405,000 405,000
Trade receivables 117,013 315,343
Deposits 741 741
Amount due from the ultimate holding company 156,222 -
Bank balances and cash — trust accounts 5,276,289 5,939,597
Bank balances and cash — general accounts 11,508,877 15,538,565
17,464,142 22,199,246
Financial liabilities
At amortised costs
Trade payables 5,451,014 6,075,907
Other payables and accruals 302,260 321,022
Amount due to the ultimate holding company - 423,927
5,753,274 6,820,856
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise statutory deposits, trade receivables,
deposits, amount due from the ultimate holding company, bank balances — trust accounts, bank
balances — general accounts, trade payables, other payables and accruals, amount due to the
ultiamte holding company and interest-bearing borrowings.

(a) Market risk
Foreign currency risk
The Company does not have significant foreign exchange risk arising from future

commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and liabilities since almost all of
them are in Hong Kong dollars.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(b) Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk and the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets is the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition, having considered available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

i

internal credit rating;

external credit rating;

actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, tinancial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the customer's ability to
meet its obligations;

actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor/customer;

signiticant changes m the expected pertormance and behaviour ot the customer,
including changes in the payment status of customer in the Company and changes in
the operating results of the customer.

Amount due from the ultimate holding company
The Company uses four categories for those receivables which reflect their credit risk

and how the loss provision is determined for each of those categories. These internal
credit risk ratings are aligned to external credit ratings.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Amount due from the ultimate holding company (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Company's expected credit loss is as

follows:

Category

Performing

Underperforming

Non-performing

Write-off

Company's
definition of categories

Customers have a low risk of
default and a strong capacity to
meet contractual cash flows

Receivables for which there is
a significant increase in credit
risk; as significant increase in
credit risk is presumed if
interest  and/or  principal
repayments are 90 days past
due

Interest  and/or  principal
repayments are 365 days past
due

[nterest  and/or  principal
repayments are two year past
due and there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery
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Basis for recognition
of expected credit
loss provision

12 months expected losses.
Where the expected lifetime of
an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime

Lifetime expected losses

Lifetime expected losses

Asset is written off
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

M

(i)

(iii)

Amount due from the ultimate holding company (continued)

The Company accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Company
considers historical loss rates for each category of receivables and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data.

As at 31st December 2023, the internal credit rating of amount due from the ultimate
holding company is performing. The Company has assessed that the expected credit loss
rate for the receivable is immaterial under 12 months expected losses method which
resulted provision for impairment on amount due from the ultimate holding company
amounted to HK$ Nil (2022: HK$ Nil) are recognised for the year.

Deposits paid

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses for
other receivables prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for these receivables.

The Company has assessed that the expected loss rate for deposits paid as at 31st
December 2023 was immaterial. Thus no loss allowance for other receivables was

recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

The table below show the details of bank balances maintained at the end of the reporting
period:

Rating 2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Cash at banks and bank deposits Aal 16,785,166 21,478,162

The rating represents long-term credit rating provided by Moody's, an internationally
recognised credit rating agency. A rating within the “A” category is judged to be upper-
medium grade and are subject to low credit risk under the rating regime of Moody's. Given
that significant portion of the bank deposits are placed with banks that are independently
rated with high credit rating with no default history in past years, management of the
Company considers that the credit risk on the bank balances and bank deposits is limited.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
ERFHFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
{Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the Company's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and other source of funding.

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the contractual maturities of the Company for their non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curves at the end of reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the contractual maturities of the Company for their non-
derivative financial assets, which are based on undiscounted cash flows of financial assets based on
the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The inclusion of information on
these non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity
risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

The amounts included below for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative financial
assets and liabilities are subject to change if changes in variance interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

On demand/ Total
As at 31st December 2023 lessthan 1 undiscounted Carrying
year cash flows amount
HKS$ HK$ HKS$
Non-derivative financial labilities
Trade payables 5,451,014 5,451,014 5,451,014
Other payables and accruals 302,260 302,260 302,260
5,753,274 5,753,274 5,753,274
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EEEFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

On demand/ Total
As at 31st December 2022 less than 1 undiscounted Carrying
year cash flows amount
HK$§ HKS$ HK$
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 6,075,907 6,075,907 6,075,907
Other payables and accruals 321,022 321,022 321,022
Amount due to the ultimate holding company 423,927 423,927 423,927
6,820,856 6,820,856 6,820,856

28. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are determined in
accordance with general accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial

liabilities measured at amortised cost and recorded in the finanical statements approximate their fair
values.
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EREFHRRAH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Company’s liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Company’s statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

Amount due (from)/to

the ultimate
holding
company
HK$
At 1st January 2023 423,927
Changes from financing cash flows:
Net movements of amount due to the ultimate
holding company (580,149)
At 31st December 2023 (156,222)
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SINOFORTUNE SECURITIES LIMITED
EEFARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Amount due to
the ultimate
holding
company
HK$
At 1st January 2022 5,887,939
Changes from financing cash flows:
Net movements of amount due to the ultimate
holding company (5,464,012)
At 31st December 2022 423,927

30. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22nd March 2024,
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ANNEXURE 6

2023 Audited Accounts of SFCL

SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
EN SR EARAT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of Sinofortune Financial
Capital Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 31st December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited (the "Company") is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and has its registered office and principal
place of business at 16/F, CMA Building, No. 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is licensed to carry
on Type 6 regulated activity in connection with advising on corporate finance. There are no significant
changes compared with the activities conducted in previous year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is exempted to be disclosed in the directors’ report as the Company satisfied the
requirement of section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The financial performance of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2023 and the Company’s
financial position as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 7 to 32.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the financial year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 13 to the financial statements. There was no
movement of the share capital during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

CHEUNG Wai Yue
LAI Yuk Mui

In accordance with the article 7 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all existing directors shall retire
from the office and shall be eligible for re-election.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the year.



SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERERMEARAT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by mean of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company’s holding company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company or the entity connected

with a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
financial year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for
the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint CCTH CPA
Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of thesboard

()
LALYuk Mui
Director

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2024
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CCTH CPA LIMITED
REXESHAERAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERERMAEARAE
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited (the “Company”) set
out on pages 7 to 32, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st December 2023, the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information..

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 31st December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) and with
reference to Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of
Intermediaries” issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

CCTH CPA LIMITED E

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, T: (852)2545 4654 F:(852)2543 2229
No, 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthcpa.com
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CCTH CPA LIMITED
PEXEEHMERQTE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERESRIMEARAE
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the directors’ report set out on pages 1 to 2 but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the
records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the
requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

CCTH CPA LIMITED s

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, T: (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthcpa.com



CCTH CPA LIMITED
PIEXREEHABEIRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ER MM EARAE
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are in
accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules
and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

CCTH CPA LIMITED

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F,, Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, T: (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthecpa.com
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CCTH CPA LIMITED
REXEEHAERAF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
EE TR ERRAT
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

® Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

CCTH CPA Limited -
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Chi Hang
Practising certificate number P01957

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2024

CCTH CPA LIMITED b

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, T: (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthepa.com



SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
EE MM EARAT

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes 2023 2022

HKS$ HK$

Revenue 6 - -
Administrative expenses (650) (800)
Loss before tax 7 (650) (300)

Income tax expense 9 = =

Loss and total comprehensive

expense for the year (650) (800)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of, and should be read
in conjunction with, these financial statements.



SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED

HEESRBRAERAT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
Notes 2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Current Assets
Bank balances and cash 11 287,233 287,883
Current Liabilities
Amount due to the ultimate holding company 12 2,000 2,000
Net Current Assets 285,233 285,883
285,233 285,883
Equity
Share capital 13 2,400,000 2,400,000
Reserves (2,114,767) (2,114,117)
285,233 285,883

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of, and should be read
in conjunction with, these financial statements.

Approved by the board of directors on 22nd March 2024 and signed by:

YR \ A
CHEUNG Wai Yue Al Yuk|Mui
Director irector
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SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERSRMRTARAE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share Accumulated
capital losses Total
HK$ HKS$ HKS$
At 1st January 2022 2,400,000 (2,113,317) 286,683
Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - (800) (800)
At 31st December 2022 and
1st January 2023 2,400,000 (2,114,117) 285,883
Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - (650) (650)
At 31st December 2023 2,400,000 (2,114,767) 285,233




SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ER SR EARAT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Loss before tax
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in amount due to the ultimate holding company

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance at the end of the year (note 11)

-10-

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
(650) (800)
(650) (800)

: 1,000

(650) 200
(650) 200
287,883 287,683
287,233 287,883




SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERERMAERRAH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

GENERAL

Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Company’s registered office and
principal place of business is located at 16th Floor, CMA Building, No. 64-66 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is licensed
to carry on the regulated activity in connection with advising on corporate finance.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company and the ultimate holding company
of the Company are Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands, and Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands, respectively. The shares of Sinofortune
Financial Holdings Limited are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange™).

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, these financial statements have also been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.
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SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERSRHERRAT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDs (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current vear

In the current year, the Company has applied the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1st January 2023 for the
preparation of the financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts

the October 2020 and

February 2022 Amendments

to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2
The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact

on the Company’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERERMBMEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDs
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not vet effective

The Company has not early applied and following amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

HKAS 28 Its Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
FERERREARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), the collective term which includes all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA™), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinances. Material accounting policy information adopted by the Company are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Company. Information on adoption of new
accounting standards to the extent that they are relevant to the company for the current and prior
accounting periods are shown in note 3.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below, and on the basis that the Company is going concern.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level |,
2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the input to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERCRRBEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

The principal accounting policies are stated below:

(a)

Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that
is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the Company performs;

- the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Company performs or;

- the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at point in time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

In determining the transaction price, the Company adjusts the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Company with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the associated goods or
services is less than one year, the Company applies the practical expedient of not adjusting

the transaction price for any significant financing component.

Further details of the Company’s revenue and other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
ERSRMMEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit or loss before income tax because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised it the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

©

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recongised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabililties at FVTPL are recongnised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Company’s ordinary course of business are
included in other income and losses, net.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(©)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- itis a derivative that it is not designiated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(©)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required to be
measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

()

(i)

(iii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income or losses, net in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest ecamed on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income or losses, net”.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

©

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Company performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model
on financial assets (including bank balances and cash) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Company’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Company measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Company recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

@

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Company
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition of a loan
commitment, the company considers changes in the risk of a default occurring on the
loan to which a loan commitment relates; for financial guarantee contracts, the
Company considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(¢) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Company considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above, the Company considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have

occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s)

that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the
incurred credit losses.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(¢)  Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

)

Write-off policy

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e: the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive; discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Company is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of the expected
payment to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Company expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Company if the holder of the
loan commitments draws down the loan, and the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or on loan commitments for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Company will apply a discount rate
that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are taken
into account by adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls
being discounted.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(©)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Company takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the grouping:

e  Past-due status;
e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognised the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recogaised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated loss.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including amount due to the ultimate holding company, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
where appropriate, the shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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s. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the directors
of the Company is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimation uncertainties that the directors have made in
the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(@) Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issued based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(b) Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

The management of the Company assessed the financial assets based on the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement records, including past due dates, default
rates, forward-looking information that is reasonable, supportable and available without
undue cost or effort.

Provision for expected credit losses of financial assets at amortised cost

The Company uses a provision of matrix approach to calculate ECLs for financial assets. The
determination of default rates takes into account historical data and forward-looking
information which involves a significant degree of management judgment.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast general

economic conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
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6. REVENUE

The Company did not generate any revenue during the year (2022: HK$ Nil).

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX
Loss before tax is arrived at after charging:
2023 2022
HKS HK§

Auditor’s remuneration (Note) = =

Note:
The auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 3 1st December 2023 and 2022 is borne by its ultimate holding
company, Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited.

8. INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS TO DIRECTORS

Details of the director's benefits disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622) and Companies (Disclosure of information about benefits of directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) are as follows:-

(a) No payments for emoluments, retirement benefits, termination of office or services as directors
were made to or receivable by the directors or any other parties in respect of the year.

(b) No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the directors to the Company or entities
connected with the directors were made or entered into by the Company during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.

(c) The Company has not entered into any transactions, arrangements or contracts during the year,
in which the directors of the Company has material interests.
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9.

10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the Company has no estimated assessable
profits for the year. (2022: HK$ Nil).

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before income tax expense in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
HKS HK$
Loss before income tax expense (650) (800)
Tax at the Hong Kong tax rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (107) (132)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 107 132

Income tax expense - -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has unrecognised tax loss appropriately
HK$2,003,063 (2022: HK$2,003,063) to carry forward against future taxable income. The deferred
tax asset has not been recognised due to unpredictability of future profit streams against which the
tax loss can be utilised. These unrecognised tax losses have no expiry date.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2022: Nil).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Cash at bank and on hand 287,233 287,883
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12.

13.

14,

15.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due to the ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

SHARE CAPITAL
2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Issued and fully paid:-
At the beginning and the end of the year
2,400,000 ordinary shares with no par value 2,400,000 2,400,000

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it maintains the requirement of liquid capital as a
licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”). Management monitors
the Company’s liquid capital on a daily basis to ensure it meets the minimum capital requirement in
accordance with Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. The Company
had been in compliance with the capital requirements imposed by Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules during the year.

The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital.

The directors review the capital structure on an annual basis. As part of the review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with its capital. Based on the recommendations
of the directors, the Company balances its overall capital structure through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$

Financial assets

At amortised cost

Bank balances and cash 287,233 287,883
2023 2022
HK$ HK$

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Amount due to the ultimate holding company 2,000 2,000
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16.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise bank balances and cash and amount due
to the ultimate holding company. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments are set out below:

(a) Market risk management
Interest rate risk

The Company's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to their variable-rate bank deposits.
The Company currently has not entered into interest rate swaps to hedge against their exposure
to interest rate risk. The Company does not have a specific policy to manage its interest rate
risk, but will closely monitor the interest rate exposure in the future.

Foreign currency risk

The Company does not have significant foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised financial assets and liabilities since almost all of them are in Hong
Kong dollars.

(b) Credit risk management

The Company is exposed to credit risk and the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets is the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the statement of financial position.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition, having considered available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e internal credit rating;
e  external credit rating;

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the customer's ability to meet
its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor/customer;

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the customer, including
changes in the payment status of customer in the Company and changes in the operating
results of the customer.
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16.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk management (continued)

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

The table below show the details of bank balances maintained at the end of the reporting

period:
Rating 2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Cash at banks and bank deposits Aal 287,233 287,883

The rating represents long-term credit rating provided by Moody's, an internationally
recognised credit rating agency. A rating within the “A” category is judged to be
upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit risk under the rating regime of Moody's.
Given that significant portion of the bank deposits are placed with banks that are
independently rated with high credit rating with no default history in past years,
management of the Company considers that the credit risk on the bank balances and bank
deposits is limited.

(c¢) Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the Company's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and other source of funding.

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the contractual maturities of the Company for their non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the contractual maturities of the Company for their
non-derivative financial assets, which are based on undiscounted cash flows of financial assets
based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The inclusion of
information on these non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the
Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability
basis.

The amounts included below for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative
financial assets and liabilities are subject to change if changes in variance interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED

EREMEEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16.

17.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

31st December 2023

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Amount due to the ultimate holding company

31st December 2022

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Amount due to the ultimate holding company

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On demand Between | Total
or within 1 undiscounted  Carrying
and 2 years
year cash flows amount
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2,000 - 2,000 2,000
On demand Between 1 Total
or within 1 undiscounted  Carrying
and 2 years
year cash flows amount
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
2,000 - 2,000 2,000

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

22nd March 2024.

-32-



(For management purposes only)

SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
EFERMERRAE

DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2023 2022

HK$ HK$
REVENUE - .
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (650) (800)
LOSS BEFORE TAX (650) (800)

Note: The unaudited figures and financial information relating to the year ended 3 1st December 2023
included in these detailed statement of profit or loss and accompanying schedules are not the
Company's statutory annual financial statements for that year. Further information relating to
these statutory financial statements required to be disclosed in accordance with section 436 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

(a) As the Company is a private company, the Company is not required to deliver its financial
statements to the Registrar of Companies, and will not do so.

(b) The Company's auditor has reported on those financial statements. The auditor's report was
unqualified; did not included a reference to any matters to which the auditor drew attention
by way of emphasis without qualifying its report; and did not contain a statement under
sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.



(For management purposes only)

SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
EREMMRERAT

SCHEDULES OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2023 2022
HKS HKS$

Bank charges 650 800




Regent Tax Consultants Limited
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SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL CAPITAL LIMITED
EFERAEARAT
PROFITS TAX COMPUTATION - 2023/24

Basis period: Account for the year ended 31st December 2023.

Loss per account
Add back due to no accessable income

Assessable profit/adjusted loss

STATEMENT OF LOSS
Loss b/f and c/f

Tel: (852) 2545 4654
Fax: (852) 2543 2229

IRD FILE No.: 22/31502316

HKS
(650)

650

2,003,063



ANNEXURE 7

2023 Audited Accounts of SAML

SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREETHEARAE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors présent their annual report and the audited financial statements of Sinofortune Asset
Management Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 3 1st December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Sinofortune Asset Management Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and has its registered office and principal
place of business at 16/F, CMA Building, No. 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is licensed to carry

on Type 9 regulated activity in connection with asset management. There are no significant changes
compared with the activities conducted in previous year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review is exempted to be disclosed in the directors’ report as the Company satisfied the
requirement of section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The financial performance of the Company for the year ended 3 1st December 2023 and the Company’s
financial position as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 7 to 32.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the financial year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 13 to the financial statements. There was
no movement of the share capital during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

CHEUNG Wai Yue
LAI Yuk Mui

In accordance with the article 7 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all existing directors shall retire
from the office and shall be eligible for re-election.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the year.



SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREETEARAT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
At no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party

to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by mean of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company’s holding company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company or the entity connected

with a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
financial year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for
the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.
AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint CCTH CPA
Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of t {’ef board

LAY Yuk i
DirEctol:' 1\){1"

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2024
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CCTH CPA LIMITED
RIEXEEHAEIRAT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREEEHEARAT
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sinofortune Asset Management Limited (the “Company”) set
out on pages 7 to 32, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st December 2023, the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 31st December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) and with
reference to Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of
Intermediaries™ issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, T. (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthepa,com
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CCTH CPA LIMITED
PEXREFHAERQE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREEEHARAT
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the directors’ report set out on pages 1 to 2 but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the
records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the
requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

CCTH CPA LIMITED

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F, Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, T: (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthcpa.com



CCTH CPA LIMITED
FEXREEHMHEIRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREEEHARAT
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are in
accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules
and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

CCTH CPA LIMITED

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, T. (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthcpa.com
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CCTH CPA LIMITED
PEXRIEEHMERAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF

SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREEEHARAT
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

L] /)

CCTH CPA Limited '
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Chi Hang
Practising certificate number P01957

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2024

CCTH CPA LIMITED

Unit 15610-1517,15/F., Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre, T: (852)2545 4654 F: (852)2543 2229
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong www.ccthcpa.com



SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
ERRETEARAT

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes 2023 2022

HKS$ HKS

Revenue 6 - -
Administrative expenses (650) (800)
Loss before tax 7 (650) (800)

Income tax expense 9 - -

Loss and total comprehensive

expense for the year (650) (800)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of, and should be read
in conjunction with, these financial statements.



SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

EREEEHARAT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
Notes 2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
Current Assets
Bank balances and cash 11 457,415 458,065
Current Liabilities
Amount due to the ultimate holding company 12 2,000 2,000
Net Current Assets 455415 456,065
455,415 456,065
Equity
Share capital 13 500,000 500,000
Reserves (44,585) (43,935)
455,415 456,065

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of, and should be read
in conjunction with, these financial statements.

Approved by the board of directors on 22nd March 2024 and signed by:

AT \ I X
' LAY Yuk Mui
Director \

Director



SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
ERAEETUARAHE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share Accumulated
capital losses Total
HKS$ HK$ HKS$
At 1st January 2022 500,000 (43,135) 456,865
Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - (800) (800)
At 31st December 2022 and
1st January 2023 500,000 (43,935) 456,065
Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - (650) (650)
At 31st December 2023 500,000 (44,585) 455,415
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SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREETHARAT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Loss before tax
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in amount due to the ultimate holding company

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance at the end of the year (note 11)

-10-

2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
(650) (800)
(650) (800)

; 1,000

(650) 200

(650) 200
458,065 457,865

457,415 458,065




SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREETEARAH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

GENERAL

Sinofortune Asset Management Limited (the “Company™) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Company’s registered
office and principal place of business is located at 16th Floor, CMA Building, No. 64-66 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is licensed
to carry on the regulated activity in connection with asset management.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company and the ultimate holding company
of the Company are Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands, and Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands, respectively. The shares of Sinofortune
Financial Holdings Limited are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange™).

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, these financial statements have also been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.
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SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREETEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDs (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current vear

In the current year, the Company has applied the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after st January 2023 for the
preparation of the financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts

the October 2020 and

February 2022 Amendments

to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS § Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact
on the Company’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.

-12-



SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
ERREEHEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDs (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Company has not early applied and following amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

HKAS 28 Its Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024.
* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREETHEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), the collective term which includes all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinances. Material accounting policy information adopted by the Company are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Company. Information on adoption of new
accounting standards to the extent that they are relevant to the company for the current and prior
accounting periods are shown in note 3.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below,
and on the basis that the Company is going concern.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the input to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

-14-



SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREETEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

The principal accounting policies are stated below:

(a)

Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that
is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the Company performs;

- the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Company performs or;

- the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at point in time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

In determining the transaction price, the Company adjusts the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Company with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract
or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the associated goods or
services is less than one year, the Company applies the practical expedient of not adjusting

the transaction price for any significant financing component.

Further details of the Company’s revenue and other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

-15-



SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EERETHAIRAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit or loss before income tax because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised it the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set

off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recongised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabililties at
FVTPL are recongnised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Company’s ordinary course of business are
included in other income and losses, net.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Company may itrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

- itisaderivative that it is not designiated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(©)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required to be
measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income or losses, net in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income or losses, net”.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Company performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model
on financial assets (including bank balances and cash) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Company’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Company measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Company recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

¢ significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

¢ an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Company
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition of a loan
commitment, the company considers changes in the risk of a default occurring on the
loan to which a loan commitment relates; for financial guarantee contracts, the
Company considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(©

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Company considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above, the Company considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have

occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s)

that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects
the incurred credit losses.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(¢)  Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

v)

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e: the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive; discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Company is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of the expected payment
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Company expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Company if the holder of the
loan commitments draws down the loan, and the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or on loan commitments for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Company will apply a discount rate
that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are taken
into account by adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls
being discounted.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Company takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the grouping:

e  Past-due status;
e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognised the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated loss.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including amount due to the ultimate holding company, ate
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or where appropriate, the shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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5. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the directors
of the Company is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimation uncertainties that the directors have made
in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(a) Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issued based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(b) Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

The management of the Company assessed the financial assets based on the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement records, including past due dates, default
rates, forward-looking information that is reasonable, supportable and available without
undue cost or effort.

Provision for expected credit losses of financial assets at amortised cost

The Company uses a provision of matrix approach to calculate ECLs for financial assets. The
determination of default rates takes into account historical data and forward-looking
information which involves a significant degree of management judgment.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast general

economic conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
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6.

REVENUE

The Company did not generate any revenue during the year (2022: HK$ Nil).

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

N
(=
N
w

2022

|

;
z

Auditor’s remuneration (Note) = 5

Note:
The auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 3 1st December 2023 and 2022 is borne by its ultimate holding
company, Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited.

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS TO DIRECTORS

Details of the director's benefits disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) and Companies (Disclosure of information about benefits of directors) Regulation (Cap.
622G) are as follows:-

(a) No payments for emoluments, retirement benefits, termination of office or services as directors
were made to or receivable by the directors or any other parties in respect of the year.

(b) No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the directors to the Company or entities
connected with the directors were made or entered into by the Company during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.

(c) The Company has not entered into any transactions, arrangements or contracts during the year,
in which the directors of the Company has material interests.

27-



SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
ERREETHEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9.

10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the Company has no estimated assessable

profits for the year. (2022: HKS Nil).

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before income tax expense in the

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Loss before income tax expense (650) (800)
Tax at the Hong Kong tax rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (107) (132)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 107 132

Income tax expense -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has unrecognised tax loss appropriately HK$36,945
(2022: HK$36,945) to carry forward against future taxable income. The deferred tax asset has not
been recognised due to unpredictability of future profit streams against which the tax loss can be

utilised. These unrecognised tax losses have no expiry date.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2022: Nil).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2023
HKS$

Cash at bank and on hand 457,415

2022
HK$

458,065
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12.

13.

14.

15.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMAPNY

The amount due to the ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

SHARE CAPITAL
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Issued and fully paid:-
At the beginning and the end of the year
500,000 ordinary shares with no par value 500,000 500,000

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it maintains the requirement of liquid capital as a
licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”). Management monitors
the Company’s liquid capital on a daily basis to ensure it meets the minimum capital requirement
in accordance with Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. The Company
had been in compliance with the capital requirements imposed by Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules during the year.

The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital.

The directors review the capital structure on an annual basis. As part of the review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with its capital. Based on the recommendations
of the directors, the Company balances its overall capital structure through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$

Financial assets

At amortised cost

Bank balances and cash 457,415 458,065
2023 2022
HK$ HKS$

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Amount due to the ultimate holding company 2,000 2,000
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16.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise bank balances and cash and amount due
to the ultimate holding company. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments are set out below:

(a) Market risk management
Interest rate risk

The Company's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to their variable-rate bank deposits.
The Company currently has not entered into interest rate swaps to hedge against their exposure
to interest rate risk. The Company does not have a specific policy to manage its interest rate
risk, but will closely monitor the interest rate exposure in the future.

Foreign currency risk

The Company does not have significant foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised financial assets and liabilities since almost all of them are in Hong
Kong dollars.

(b) Credit risk management

The Company is exposed to credit risk and the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets is the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the statement of financial position.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition, having considered available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e internal credit rating;
e  external credit rating;

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the customer's ability to meet
its obligations;

*  actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor/customer;

* significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the customer, including
changes in the payment status of customer in the Company and changes in the operating
results of the customer.
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16.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk management (continued)

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

The table below show the details of bank balances maintained at the end of the reporting
period:

Rating 2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Cash at banks and bank deposits Aal 457,415 458,065

The rating represents long-term credit rating provided by Moody's, an internationally
recognised credit rating agency. A rating within the “A” category is judged to be upper-
medium grade and are subject to low credit risk under the rating regime of Moody's. Given
that significant portion of the bank deposits are placed with banks that are independently
rated with high credit rating with no default history in past years, management of the
Company considers that the credit risk on the bank balances and bank deposits is limited.

(c) Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the Company's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of borrowings and other source of funding,.

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the contractual maturities of the Company for their non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the contractual maturities of the Company for their non-
derivative financial assets, which are based on undiscounted cash flows of financial assets
based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The inclusion of
information on these non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the
Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability
basis.

The amounts included below for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative
financial assets and liabilities are subject to change if changes in variance interest rates differ
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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16.

17.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

31st December 2023

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Amount due to the ultimate holding company

31st December 2022

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Amount due to the ultimate holding company

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On demand Between 1 Total
or within 1 undiscounted  Carrying
and 2 years
year cash flows amount
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
2,000 2,000 2,000
On demand Between 1 Total
or within 1 undiscounted  Carrying
and 2 years
year cash flows amount
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
2,000 - 2,000 2,000

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

22nd March 2024.
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SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREEETEARAT
PROFITS TAX COMPUTATION - 2023/24

Basis period: Account for the year ended 3 1st December 2023.

Loss per account
Add back due to no accessable income

Assessable profit/adjusted loss

STATEMENT OF LOSS
Loss b/f and c/f

Tel: (852) 2545 4654
Fax: (852) 2543 2229

IRD FILE No.: 22/39545110

HK$
(650)

650

36,945




(For management purposes only)

SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EREETEARAT

DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2023 2022

HKS$ HKS
REVENUE ] i
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (650) (800)
LOSS BEFORE TAX (650) (800)

Note: The unaudited figures and financial information relating to the year ended 3 1st December 2023
included in these detailed statement of profit or loss and accompanying schedules are not the
Company's statutory annual financial statements for that year. Further information relating to
these statutory financial statements required to be disclosed in accordance with section 436 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

(a) As the Company is a private company, the Company is not required to deliver its financial
statements to the Registrar of Companies, and will not do so.

(b) The Company's auditor has reported on those financial statements. The auditor's report was
unqualified; did not included a reference to any matters to which the auditor drew attention
by way of emphasis without qualifying its report; and did not contain a statement under
sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.



(For management purposes only)

SINOFORTUNE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
EEAETHEARAT

SCHEDULES OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2023 2022
HK$ HKS$

Bank charges 650 800




